
 

 

 
MCA - Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

 
 

Wednesday, 19 October 2022 at 11.00 am 
 
Venue:  South Yorkshire MCA, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield, 
S1 2BQ 

Agenda 
 

Agenda 
Ref No 

Subject Lead Page 
 

1.   Welcome and Apologies  Chair Verbal 

2.   Urgent Items/Announcements  Chair Verbal 

3.   Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public and 
Press  

Chair Verbal 

4.   Declarations of Interest by any Members  Chair Verbal 

5.   Reports from and Questions by Members  Chair Verbal 

6.   Questions from Members of the Public  Chair Verbal 

7.   Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held on 14 
July 2022  

Chair 3 – 8 

8.   Matters Arising and Action Log  Chair 9 – 16 

9.   Transport Risk Working Group Update 
 

Rhys Jarvis Verbal 
 

10.   Terms of Reference Review  Chair 17 - 24 

11.   Public Sector Audit Appointment Procurement and Fees  Gareth Sutton 25 - 38 

12.   External Audit Plan Update   39 - 122 

13.   Strengthening Corporate Governance  Ruth Adams 123 - 126 

14.   National Audit Office Report Summary -  Challenging 
Climate Change Risk  

Ruth Adams 127 - 136 

15.   Risk Management Monitoring Report  Ruth Adams 137 - 152 

16.   2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report  Lisa Mackenzie 153 - 160 

17.   Internal Audit Report -  Governance  Lisa Mackenzie 161 - 178 

18.   Internal Audit Report - GDPR  Lisa Mackenzie 179 - 196 

19.   Internal Audit Recommendations Tracker  Lisa Mackenzie 197 - 210 

20.   Contract Procedure Rules Breach and Suspected 
Instances of Fraud Report  

Gareth Sutton 211 - 214 

21.   Internal Audit Re-Procurement  Gareth Sutton 215 - 218 

22.   Work Plan for 2022/23  Claire James 219 - 224 

 
Date of next meeting:   Wednesday, 25 January 2023 at 11.00 am 
At:  South Yorkshire MCA, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield, S1 2BQ  

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



MCA - AUDIT, STANDARDS AND RISK COMMITTEE 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: 
 
THURSDAY, 14 JULY 2022 AT 11.00 AM 
 
SOUTH YORKSHIRE MCA, 11 BROAD STREET WEST, 
SHEFFIELD, S1 2BQ 
 

 
 
Present: 
 
Councillor Phillip Lofts (Chair) Barnsley MBC 
Rhys Jarvis (Vice-Chair) (Independent Member) 
Councillor Ian Auckland Sheffield City Council 
Councillor Austen White Doncaster MBC 
Angela Marshall (Independent Member) 
 
In Attendance: 
  
Dr Ruth Adams Deputy Chief Executive SYMCA Executive Team 
Peter Clark Internal Audit Grant Thornton 
Claire James Head of Corporate Governance SYMCA Executive Team 
Gabriella Kocsis Minute Taker SYMCA Executive Team 
Lisa Mackenzie Internal Audit Grant Thornton 
Tim Taylor Director of Public Transport 

Operations 
SYMCA Executive Team 

Mike Thomas Assistant Director - Finance SYMCA Executive Team 
 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor Emily Barley Rotherham MBC 
Hassan Rohimun External Audit 
Gareth Sutton SYMCA Executive Team 
 
 
56 Welcome and Apologies 

 
 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

  
Apologies were noted as above. 
 

57 Urgent Items/Announcements 
 

 The Chair noted that this was A Marshall’s final meeting and the committee 
thanked her for her service and expert advice during her tenure. Officers 
echoed and endorsed their thanks. 
 

58 Items to be Considered in the Absence of Public and Press 
 

 None. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



 

 
59 Declarations of Interest by any Members 

 
 None. 

 
60 Reports from and Questions by Members 

 
 None. 

 
61 Questions from Members of the Public 

 
 None. 

 
62 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 9 June 2022 

 
 ACTION: Democratic Services to edit the minutes to reflect that Cllr Auckland 

was present, and that following his nomination to be Chair it was the Chair who 
welcomed everyone to the meeting and not Cllr Auckland. 
 
RESOLVED: Subject to the above amendments being made, that the minutes 
of the meeting held on 9th June 2022 be agreed as a true record. 
 

63 Matters Arising and Action Log 
 

 Climate Change 
Members had expected a climate change risk report to be featured on the work 
plan. The Chair explained that he anticipated that an environmental element 
would be present in each section of work the committee audited. A discussion 
was had around the different pieces of work in this topic area and what would 
be most beneficial for members to see. 
  
ACTION: The Deputy Chief Executive and L Mackenzie to work together on a 
summary of the NAO report to present to members. 
  
ACTION: The Deputy Chief Executive to work with officers to ensure a climate 
change report to be brought to the next meeting. 
  
Audit, Standards and Risk Panel 
Members discussed the future of the panel. A Marshall and R Jarvis felt that a 
panel could support the work of the main Committee but that an elected 
member from the committee would be required.   
 
The Deputy Chief Executive clarified the Terms of Reference (ToR) regarding 
the committee’s authority to set up working groups, panels and sub-
committees; the committee cannot delegate any of its powers as given to it by 
the MCA to a sub-group or panel so work would be needed around the ToR for 
such a group.  The committee were informed that this would be discussed 
further with the Monitoring Officer. 
  
Members discussed the risks surrounding transport; Cllr Auckland stated that 
this was an area of interest for him and stated he would be willing to be a 
member of a working group if the opportunity arose.   

Page 4



 

ACTION: Deputy Chief Executive to discuss with the Monitoring Officer what 
members can do in terms of setting up a working group (or similar) specifically 
linked to the transport risk. Members to receive a paper on these 
recommendations. 
  
The Head of Corporate Governance suggested that a report to the committee 
which mapped the MCAs existing assurance procedures. 
  
ACTION: Head of Corporate Governance to investigate assurance mapping 
and present the committee with an update. 
  
Action Log 
Cllr Lofts and the Assistant Director of Finance will be meeting with H Rohimun 
over the next few days. 
  
Members were reminded that Treasury Management Training would take place 

on Thursday 1st September 2022. 

 
64 Draft Accounts 2021/22 

 
 The Assistant Director of Finance introduced a report which provided members 

with an update on the 2021/22 Annual Accounts for the MCA Group and 
SYPTE. 
  
Members noted that the external audit planning phase began last week and 
would continue for 4-5 weeks. The Assistant Director of Finance explained that 
the information provided to them was due to regulation but drew their attention 
to the narrative statement at the beginning of each report which set out the 
context.  Members noted the update from the Assistant Director of Finance. 
  
A discussion took place regarding whether there was a programme in place to 
help the MCA reach its spending and scheme delivery targets due to the 
underspend described by the Assistance Director of Finance.  Members were 
reassured that a team was in place who would look at mitigating risks 
associated with this. Additionally, the MCA’s Assurance Framework and other 
processes had been adapted to ensure changes were dealt with easily. The 
Assistant Director of Finance reassured the committee that there was other 
funding available as a contingency if central Government withdrew funding.  
  
Members discussed External Audit fees and noted that there was currently no 
indication as to whether there would be any additional fees. Members agreed 
that if additional charges are incurred, an explanation would be appreciated to 
understand why they had been incurred. 
  
The Assistant Director of Finance informed members of the new External Audit 
Manager, the Reverend Sue Gill, and assured them that he had been in 
conversation with the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) regarding 
concerns raising over the past few meetings. Members agreed that they looked 
forward to meeting the Reverend S Gill. 
  
RESOLVED:  That members reviewed the Annual Accounts for 2021/22 and 
noted that external audit was underway. 

Page 5



 

65 Internal Audit Annual Report/Head of Audit Opinion 
 

 P Clark briefly gave an overview of the Internal Audit Annual Report and Head 
of Internal Audit Opinion 2021/22. 
  
Members were asked to note summary pages in the paper pack. The 
committee were reassured that no changes had been made since the draft 
report was brought before the committee on 9 June 2022. 
  
Members enquired when the Governance Report would be brought before the 
committee.  The committee were informed that this was in the final draft stages 
would be on the next ASRC meeting agenda.    
  
ACTION:  Democratic Services to place Internal Audit Governance Report on 
the forward plan. 
  
RESOLVED:   Members noted the Internal Audit Annual Report and Head of 
Internal Audit Opinion 2021/22. 
 

66 External Audit Update 
 

 H Rohimun was not present at the meeting and did not send apologies. 
 
ACTION: Cllr Lofts and M Thomas to meet with H Rohimun and discuss 
attendance at meetings. 
 

67 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report 
 

 L Mackenzie presented an update on the progress of the 2022/23 Group 
Internal Audit Plan. 
  
L Mackenzie asked members to note that the GDPR Review was in progress 
and was coming to the end of the fieldwork stage and would be presented to 
Members at the next meeting. Members were informed that introductory 
conversations around the Net Zero Review, Adult Education Budget and 
Integration Review were in the pipeline to be scoped. Additional controls testing 
around the Growth Fund Grant had been requested by managers and 
discussions around allocation time scales were taking place. 
  
The Director of Public Transport Operations asked members to note that the 
approved request for additional allocation of days for use on Community 
Transport work had been delayed. 
  
RESOLVED:   That members noted the progress of 2022/23 audit activity and 
approved changes to the Internal Audit Plan. 
 

68 Internal Audit Reports - Risk Management 
 

 L Mackenzie summarised the Internal Audit Report for Risk Management from 
the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan. 
  
Members were asked to note that this review was completed in respect of the 

Page 6



 

2021/22 financial year, and it followed a very small scope to consider the 
integration of the two authorities (MCA and PTE) into one joined authority. It 
does not give assurance on the embeddedness of the processes put in place, 
but this would be the focus of this year’s review. 
  
Members noted that one medium risk was raised relating to the oversight of risk 
within the thematic boards. The Deputy Chief Executive updated members on 
the ToR for the Thematic Boards which were scoped by the MCA and did not 
delegate risk oversight other than at a decision-by-decision level. Management 
will go back to the MCA to see if they would like to change the ToR for the 
Thematic Boards. 
  
RESOLVED:  That members noted the findings and recommendations of the 
internal audit on Risk Management.   
 

69 Risk Management Framework Implementation 
 

 The Head of Corporate Governance provided members with a summary of the 
risk management development activity to date and presented a plan and 
timeline for the continuing implementation of the agreed risk management 
approach. 
  
Members were asked to note Section 3 and Appendix A which discussed 
resourcing requirements, actions and implementation timeline required to 
continue to embed this. 
  
Members discussed the specifics of the timeline as they felt that aspects were 
planned to take place too early and quarter 4 was ‘crowded’.  The structure of 
the Governance team and the administration and implementation of the risk 
system was also discussed. 
  
ACTION: Head of Corporate Governance and L Mackenzie to review the Post 
Implementation Review schedule.   
  
The Committee noted that the framework would be presented to the MCA 
Board on 25 July 2022. 
  
RESOLVED: That members noted the progress to date and considered the 
plan and timeline for the continuing implementation of the agreed risk 
management approach. 
 

70 Governance Improvement Plan Update 
 

 The Head of Corporate Governance updated the Committee on the 2022/23 
Governance Improvement Plan. 
  
Members noted that an update would be brought to every committee meeting 
going forward.  The actions within the plan are high level and multi-layered 
requiring collaboration with other teams and so required a slightly longer 
timeframe. A discussion took place regarding how the key themes would be 
broken down into responsible officers and deadlines. Members agreed that this 
would be a sensible approach.  

Page 7



 

RESOLVED:  Members noted the activity to progress the governance 
improvement plan. 
 

71 Work plan for 2022/23 
 

 The Head of Corporate Governance asked for feedback on the proposed work 
plan for 2022/23. 
  
Members discussed the proposed work plan items and suggested 
amendments. 
  
ACTION:   Head of Corporate Governance to add a session for the Committee 
to review its Terms of Reference. 
  
ACTION: The Head of Corporate Governance to add a session on 
Performance Management.    
  
ACTION: The Head of Corporate Governance to create and circulate an 
Assurance Map to Members. 
  
ACTION: The Head of Corporate Governance plan a session on the Assurance 
and Accountability Framework in January 2023 so members can comment on it 
during its creation. 
  
ACTION: The Head of Corporate Governance to review the methodology 
behind the Internal Audit Review (ie, a report formed from interviews with 
Committee Members). 
  
ACTION: The Head of Corporate Governance to investigate splitting the March 
workload into two separate meetings to allow for all scheduled work to be 
looked at thoroughly. 
  
RESOLVED:  Members noted the proposed work plan for 2022/23 and agreed 
on changes and additional items.   
 

 
I, the undersigned, confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting. 
 
Signed  

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 8



 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee  
 

Action Log  
  

 
Open and Recently Completed Actions & Matters Arising 

 
Matters Arising 
 
Appointment of Independent Member 
 
Following an open recruitment exercise, interviews for an Independent Member took place on 26th September. The panel 
consisted of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Chair, The Executive Director of Finance and Investment and the Head 
of Corporate Governance. A further recruitment campaign will take place in the new year as required. 
 
A paper recommending the appointment of Dave Phillips for a term of 3 years will be considered by the MCA Board on 18th 
October. The paper can be found here https://governance.southyorkshire-
ca.gov.uk/documents/s11974/Appointment%20of%20Independent%20ASRC%20Member.pdf  

 
Meeting 

Date 
Minute 

No 
Action Action 

Owner 
Update Status 

14/07/2022 62  Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 9 June 
2022 
 
Minute: Democratic Services to edit the minutes to 
reflect that Cllr Auckland was present, and that 
following his nomination to be Chair it was the Chair 
who welcomed everyone to the meeting and not Cllr 
Auckland.  

Democratic 
Services 
Team  

The minutes have been 
amended and uploaded to the 
website.  

Complete 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 8

https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/documents/s11974/Appointment%20of%20Independent%20ASRC%20Member.pdf
https://governance.southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/documents/s11974/Appointment%20of%20Independent%20ASRC%20Member.pdf


 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action 
Owner 

Update Status 

14/07/2022 63 Matters Arising and Action Log  
 
Minute: The Deputy Chief Executive and L 
Mackenzie to work together on a summary of the 
NAO report to present to members.  
 

R Adams Included at agenda item 14. Complete 

14/07/2022 63  Matters Arising and Action Log 
 
Minute: Deputy Chief Executive to discuss with the 
Monitoring Officer what members can do in terms of 
setting up a working group (or similar) specifically 
linked to the transport risk. Members to receive a 
paper on these recommendations.  

 

R Adams It has been agreed to establish 
a working group to meet prior 
to each formal ASRC meeting 
to review public transport risks 
with any issues escalated to 
the Committee.  
Rhys Jarvis, Cllr Austin White 
and Cllr Ian Auckland have 
volunteered to attend the 
Group. Dates have seen set 
for: 17 October 
       23 January 
       20 March.  

Complete 

14/07/2022 63  Matters Arising and Action Log 
 
Minute: Head of Corporate Governance to 
investigate assurance mapping and present the 
committee with an update.  
 

C James Included at agenda item 13. 
 

Complete 

14/07/2022 65 Internal Audit Annual Report/Head of Audit 
Opinion  
 
Minute: Democratic Services to place Internal Audit 
Governance Report on the forward plan.  

Democratic 
Services 
Team 

Included at agenda item 17. 
Also circulated for information 
as part of a mid-meeting cycle 
update to members. 

Complete 

P
age 10



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action 
Owner 

Update Status 

 

14/07/2022 66  External Audit Update  
 
Minute: Cllr Lofts and M Thomas to meet with H 
Rohimun and discuss attendance at meetings.  
 

M Thomas Meeting took place on 19 July.  Complete 

14/07/2022 69 Risk Management Framework Implementation  
 

Minute: Head of Corporate Governance and L 
Mackenzie to review the Post Implementation 
Review schedule.  
 
 
 

C James The Risk Management post-
implementation review has 
been pushed back slightly and 
will now commence in January 
and report to the Committee in 
March.  

Complete 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 

Minute: Head of Corporate Governance to add a 
session for the Committee to review its Terms of 
Reference.  
 

C James Included at agenda item 10. Complete 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 

Minute: The Head of Corporate Governance to add 
a session on Performance Management.  
 

 

C James Added to the January 
workplan. 

Complete 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 

C James Under development, see 
agenda item 13. 

In progress 

P
age 11



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action 
Owner 

Update Status 

Minute: The Head of Corporate Governance to 
create and circulate an Assurance Map to Members.  

 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 

Minute: The Head of Corporate Governance plan a 
session on the Assurance and Accountability 
Framework in January 2023 so members can 
comment on it during its creation.  

 

C James Added to agenda for January. 
Lead officer informed.  

Complete 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 

Minute: The Head of Corporate Governance to 
review the methodology behind the Annual 
Governance Review (ie, a report formed from 
interviews with Committee Members).  
 

C James Under review as part of the 
piece of work on strengthening 
assurance. See agenda item 
13. 

In progress 

14/07/2022 71 Work plan for 2022/23  
 

Minute: The Head of Corporate Governance to 
investigate splitting the March workload into two 
separate meetings to allow for all scheduled work to 
be looked at thoroughly.  

 

C James Morning (11am-12:30pm) and 
afternoon (1:30pm-3pm) 
sessions have been set up on 
22 March. Invitations sent on 
21 September. 

Complete 

09/06/2022 

 

55 Work Plan 
 
Minute: C James to check why the climate change 
paper has been pushed back. 

C James  Complete 

P
age 12



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action 
Owner 

Update Status 

09/06/2022 

 

52 Draft Chair’s Annual Report 
 
Minute: Democratic Services to ensure the meeting 
dates are in all members’ diaries and circulate an 
email with these so they can forward plan and 
discuss with their reserve if they are not able to 
attend.  
 

Democratic 
Services 
Team 

Meetings have been 
rearranged to avoid Council 
meetings. Dates are now:  

• 19 October 2022 

• 25 January 2022 

• 22 March 2022 

Outlook invitations sent to 
Members and Reserves on 4 
August.  
 

Complete 

09/06/2022 

 

45 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 24 
March 2022 
 
Minute: G Sutton to follow up with internal audit 
colleagues and clarify the number of days that had 
been taken from the previous year’s plan. 
 

G Sutton The time taken from last year’s 
plan (2021/22) was 24 days 
and the 41 days was the time 
taken from this current year’s 
plan (both were to support the 
community transport review). 
 

Complete 

24/03/2022 25 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting 
held on 27 January 2022 
 
Minute: It was noted that a Treasury Management 
tutorial had not been arranged as mentioned on 
page 12 of the minutes. Members expressed the 
wish that this should still go ahead and it was agreed 
to arrange the tutorial in the near future. 
 
Treasury Management workshop to be arranged.  
 

Dawn 
Marshall 

Training took place on 1 
September.  

Complete 

 

P
age 13



 

Completed Actions 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

09/06/2022 

 

53 Health and Safety Update/Report 
 
Minute: L Sutton to have a conversation with Tim 
Taylor and ask him to put pressure on the bus and 
tram partners. 
 

L Sutton T Taylor confirmed that 
bus operators have no 
legal obligation to 
supply us with accident 
data and, unless 
provided alongside 
other information such 
as number of bus 
routes, will not be 
informative.   
 

Complete 

09/06/2022 

 

52 Draft Chair’s Annual Report 
 
Minute: C James to circulate the missing 
appendices following the meeting. 
 

C James  Complete 

09/06/2022 

 

49 Draft Accounts Progress Report 
 
Minute: M Thomas to arrange an offline 
conversation between him, Cllr Lofts and H 
Rohimun. 
 

M Thomas This has taken place. Complete 

09/06/2022 
 

47 Annual Report of the Chair of the Audit, 
Standards & Risk Panel and Verbal Update 
 
Minute: To add an item on the future of the 
Assurance Panel to the agenda of the next meeting. 

Democratic 
Services Team 

Discussed at meeting 
held on 14/07/2022. 

Complete 

P
age 14



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

24/03/2022 32 Committee Effectiveness 
 
Minute: The Committee agreed unanimously that 
the matter of attendance needed to be addressed 
and asked officers to prepare an options paper with 
a view to increasing member attendance. 
 

C James Committee reduced 
from 8 to 4 Members 
on a trial basis for 
2022/23.  

Complete 

27/02/2022 15 Internal Audit Reports 
 
Minute: In response to a number of queries raised 
by Members regarding the difficulties encountered in 
reading the reports on their devices, L Mackenzie 
would ascertain whether the documents could be 
produced in an easier to read format. 

L Mackenzie L Mackenzie stated 
that it would not be 
possible to change the 
format of the Grant 
Thornton reports. 
 
C Marriott will make 
paper copies of the 
reports available at the 
meeting. 
 

Closed 

27/01/2022 12 Draft 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy 
Report 
 
Minute: Councillor Jones highlighted a 
typographical error within Section B of Appendix 
1 to the report, which should indicate that the other 
long-term liabilities set out in the table above 
represented the PFI liability in respect of Doncaster 
Interchange. 
 
M Thomas to amend the document prior to being 
presented to the SYMCA Board for approval. 

M Thomas  Complete 

P
age 15



 

Meeting 
Date 

Minute 
No 

Action Action Owner Update Status 

27/01/2022 9 Health and Safety Update/Report 
 
Minute: T Taylor replied that periodic reporting was 
received from Stagecoach. He was 
unaware of any accidents that had led to legal 
representation by the complainants; he would 
ascertain the position. He would remind Stagecoach 
of the request to provide accident and health and 
safety statistics to be fed into the report. There was 
not a definitive view in relation to SYMCA’s 
responsibility for those accidents that had occurred 
on its premises, which would be dependent upon the 
nature of the accidents; legal council could be 
sought if required. 
 
T Taylor to ascertain whether there was any SYMCA 
litigation that had resulted from accidents with the 
operators. 
 

T Taylor  Complete 

 

 

P
age 16



Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

Terms of Reference 

Statement of purpose 

The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is a key component of corporate 

governance providing an independent, high-level focus on the audit, assurance and 

reporting framework underpinning financial management and governance 

arrangements. Its purpose is to provide independent review and assurance to 

Members on governance, risk management and control frameworks. The 

Committee’s roles and functions are set out in paragraph 3 below. It also undertakes 

the Authority’s Standards Committee function (see para 3.15 below). 

2. Composition and Procedure 

2.1. Membership 

The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee shall be appointed by the Authority from 

the Members and/or members of the Constituent councils. 

The Authority shall decide the size and membership at the Annual Meeting, provided 

that the membership shall comprise at least one Independent Person and comply 

with paragraph 2.3 below. 

Independent Persons are non-voting positions. 

2.2. Independent Person 

For the purposes of paragraph 2.1 above an individual is an Independent 

Person if that person: 

(i) is not a member, substitute member, co-opted member or officer of the 

Authority; 

(ii) is not a relative, or close friend, of a person within (i) above; and 

(iii) was not at any time during the 5 years ending with their appointment to 

the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee a member, substituted member, co- 

opted member or officer of the authority. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 10



For the purposes of paragraph 2.2(ii) above “relative” has the meaning contained in 

Article 2(2) of 2017 Order. 

For the avoidance of doubt the Authority may agree to pay a reasonable allowance 

and expenses to the appointed Independent Persons. 

2.3. Political Balance 

Ignoring the Independent Persons, in appointing co-opted elected members to the 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee the Authority must ensure that the members of 

the committee taken as a whole reflect, so far as reasonably practicable, the balance 

of political parties for the time being prevailing among members of the Constituent 

Councils when taken together. 

2.4. Chairing the Committee 

The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee will be chaired by an elected Member and 

the vice-chair shall be an Independent Person. The role of Chair shall be appointed 

to annually at the first quorate meeting of the Committee after the Authority’s AGM. 

Prior to the meeting nominations will be requested and each nomination shall be 

voted upon by the Members present at the meeting. 

2.5. Quorum 

At least two-thirds of the total number of members of the Audit, Standards and Risk 

Committee must be present at a meeting of the Audit, Standards and Risk 

Committee before any business may be transacted. If a meeting is not quorate the 

meeting may discuss any items on the agenda that do not require an executive 

decision and the minutes will reflect that the meeting was not quorate. 

3. Role and Function 

For any period prior to legal dissolution of SYPTE, and where appropriate, reference 

in paragraphs 3.1 to 3.11 below to “Authority” shall be read and construed as to 

include SYPTE. 

3.1. To consider the Authority’s statement of accounts prepared in accordance with 

the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 and make recommendations to 

the Authority in regard to the Statement prior to the Authority approving the same; 

Page 18



3.2. To consider the External Auditor’s Annual Audit and Inspection Letter in 

accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 and to monitor 

the Authority’s response to individual issues of concern identified; 

3.3. To consider and advise the Authority on the findings of the Authority’s review of 

the effectiveness of its system of internal control and on the Annual Governance 

Statement; 

3.4. To consider and advise the Authority on the findings of the review of the 

effectiveness of its internal audit; 

3.5. To oversee the effectiveness of the Authority’s risk management arrangements, 

the control environment and associated anti-fraud and anticorruption arrangements, 

including approving under delegated powers the Authority’s Anti-Fraud and 

Corruption Policy and associated Fraud Response Plan and any changes to these; 

3.6. To challenge the Authority’s performance management arrangements; 

3.7. To oversee and review the Authority’s internal audit strategy, and receive 

reports, as appropriate, from the Internal Auditor; 

3.8. To engage with the External Auditor and external inspection agencies and other 

relevant bodies to ensure that there are effective relationships between external and 

internal audit; 

3.9. To review any recommendations in respect of proposed changes to Part 5F of 

the Authorities Constitution (Financial Regulations) made by the Finance Director 

and Monitoring Officer or otherwise; 

3.10. To ensure effective scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy and 

Policies; 

3.11. To consider and advise the Authority on its Code of Corporate Governance. 

3.12. To establish advisory panels as the Committee sees fit in order to discharge its 

role and functions. In respect of any such advisory panel the Committee shall 

determine the terms of reference. 

Page 19



3.13. The Committee will prepare an annual work plan to ensure that it adequately 

discharges its responsibilities as set out in this section over the course of the 

financial year; 

3.14. The Committee will also review its own effectiveness annually and report the 

results of that review along with a review of its work during the financial year, 

including any items it wishes to particularly note, to the MCA Board. 

Standards 

3.15. To determine, in accordance with the Authority’s Arrangements whether a 

Member (or co-opted voting member) (“Subject Member”) has failed to comply with 

the Authority’s Code of Conduct for Members and, if so, to determine what action (if 

any) to take in respect of the Subject Member, such actions to include:- 

• publication of the findings of the Authority’s Standards Committee in respect of 

the Subject Member’s conduct; 

• reporting the findings of the Authority’s Standards Committee to the Combined 

Authority for information; 

• recommendation to the Authority that the Subject Member should be censured; 

• instructing the Authority’s Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the Subject 

Member; or 

• recommendation to the Authority that the Subject Member should be removed 

from all appointments to which the Subject Member has been appointed or 

nominated by the Authority. 

Page 20



Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

Terms of Reference 

Statement of purpose 

The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is a key component of corporate 

governance providing an independent, high-level focus on the audit, assurance and 

reporting framework underpinning financial management and governance 

arrangements. Its purpose is to provide independent review and assurance to 

Members on governance, risk management and control frameworks. The 

Committee’s roles and functions are set out in paragraph 3 below. It also undertakes 

the Authority’s Standards Committee function (see para 3.15 below). 

2. Composition and Procedure 

2.1. Membership 

The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee shall be appointed by the Authority from 

the Members and/or members of the Constituent councils. 

The Authority shall decide the size and membership at the Annual Meeting, provided 

that the membership shall comprise at least one Independent Person and comply 

with paragraph 2.3 below. 

Independent Persons are non-voting positions. 

2.2. Independent Person 

For the purposes of paragraph 2.1 above an individual is an Independent 

Person if that person: 

(i) is not a member, substitute member, co-opted member or officer of the 

Authority; 

(ii) is not a relative, or close friend, of a person within (i) above; and 

(iii) was not at any time during the 5 years ending with their appointment to 

the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee a member, substituted member, co- 

opted member or officer of the authority. 

Page 21



For the purposes of paragraph 2.2(ii) above “relative” has the meaning contained in 

Article 2(2) of 2017 Order. 

For the avoidance of doubt the Authority may agree to pay a reasonable allowance 

and expenses to the appointed Independent Persons. 

2.3. Political Balance 

Ignoring the Independent Persons, in appointing co-opted elected members to the 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee the Authority must ensure that the members of 

the committee taken as a whole reflect, so far as reasonably practicable, the balance 

of political parties for the time being prevailing among members of the Constituent 

Councils when taken together. 

2.4. Chairing the Committee 

The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee will be chaired by an elected Member and 

the vice-chair shall be an Independent Person. The role of Chair shall be appointed 

to annually at the first quorate meeting of the Committee after the Authority’s AGM. 

Prior to the meeting nominations will be requested and each nomination shall be 

voted upon by the Members present at the meeting. 

2.5. Quorum 

At least two-thirds of the total number of members of the Audit, Standards and Risk 

Committee must be present at a meeting of the Audit, Standards and Risk 

Committee before any business may be transacted. If a meeting is not quorate the 

meeting may discuss any items on the agenda that do not require an executive 

decision and the minutes will reflect that the meeting was not quorate. 

3. Role and Function 

For any period prior to legal dissolution of SYPTE, and where appropriate, reference 

in paragraphs 3.1 to 3.11 below to “Authority” shall be read and construed as to 

include SYPTE. 

3.1. To consider the Authority’s statement of accounts prepared in accordance with 

the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 and make recommendations to 

the Authority in regard to the Statement prior to the Authority approving the same; 

Page 22



3.2. To consider the External Auditor’s Annual Audit and Inspection Letter in 

accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 and to monitor 

the Authority’s response to individual issues of concern identified; 

3.3. To consider and advise the Authority on the findings of the Authority’s review of 

the effectiveness of its system of internal control and on the Annual Governance 

Statement; 

3.4. To consider and advise the Authority on the findings of the review of the 

effectiveness of its internal audit; 

3.5. To oversee the effectiveness of the Authority’s risk management arrangements, 

the control environment and associated anti-fraud and anticorruption arrangements, 

including approving under delegated powers the Authority’s Anti-Fraud and 

Corruption Policy and associated Fraud Response Plan and any changes to these; 

3.6. To challenge the Authority’s performance management arrangements; 

3.7. To oversee and review the Authority’s internal audit strategy, and receive 

reports, as appropriate, from the Internal Auditor; 

3.8. To engage with the External Auditor and external inspection agencies and other 

relevant bodies to ensure that there are effective relationships between external and 

internal audit; 

3.9. To review any recommendations in respect of proposed changes to Part 5F of 

the Authorities Constitution (Financial Regulations) made by the Finance Director 

and Monitoring Officer or otherwise; 

3.10. To ensure effective scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy and 

Policies; 

3.11. To consider and advise the Authority on its Code of Corporate Governance. 

3.12. To establish advisory panels as the Committee sees fit in order to discharge its 

role and functions. In respect of any such advisory panel the Committee shall 

determine the terms of reference. 

Page 23



3.13. The Committee will prepare an annual work plan to ensure that it adequately 

discharges its responsibilities as set out in this section over the course of the 

financial year; 

3.14. The Committee will also review its own effectiveness annually and report the 

results of that review along with a review of its work during the financial year, 

including any items it wishes to particularly note, to the MCA Board. 

Standards 

3.15. To determine, in accordance with the Authority’s Arrangements whether a 

Member (or co-opted voting member) (“Subject Member”) has failed to comply with 

the Authority’s Code of Conduct for Members and, if so, to determine what action (if 

any) to take in respect of the Subject Member, such actions to include:- 

• publication of the findings of the Authority’s Standards Committee in respect of 

the Subject Member’s conduct; 

• reporting the findings of the Authority’s Standards Committee to the Combined 

Authority for information; 

• recommendation to the Authority that the Subject Member should be censured; 

• instructing the Authority’s Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the Subject 

Member; or 

• recommendation to the Authority that the Subject Member should be removed 

from all appointments to which the Subject Member has been appointed or 

nominated by the Authority. 

Page 24



 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

19 October 2022 
 

Public Sector Audit Appointment Procurement and Fees 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                   Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Gareth Sutton, Chief Finance Officer/s73 Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Gareth Sutton 
Gareth.sutton@SouthYorkshire-CA.gov.uk  
 

 
Executive Summary 
This report summarises recent correspondence from the PSAA setting out consultation on 
changes to the external audit fee scales and the results of the procurement processes for 
the audit period that will commence in 2023. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Good governance enables the MCA to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most 
effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in 
South Yorkshire.  
 

Recommendations   
Members are asked to note the report and appendices. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
N/A  

 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 11

mailto:Gareth.sutton@SouthYorkshire-CA.gov.uk


 
1.  Background  
  
1.1 Since the last Committee meeting the MCA Group has been in receipt of two sets 

of correspondence from the Public Sector Audit Appointment (PSAA) body. The 
Group has ‘opted-in’ to the collective procurement and contract management 
arrangements of this body for both the current external audit and the new audit that 
will commence for financial year 2023/24 onwards. 

  
1.2 The correspondence received from the PSAA is appended to this report but can be 

summarised as noting: 

1. Consultation on a proposal to change the audit fee-scales for the 2022/23 audit; 
and, 

2. The procurement process for those audits commencing in financial year 
2023/24 has now been completed. 

  
1.3 The immediate implications of this correspondence are that the Group can expect 

the costs of external audit to increase. 
  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 The MCA Group opts into the processes of the PSAA. This means that the audits of 

the South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive and the Mayoral Combined 
Authority are delivered through the auspices of that body. The PSAA procures 
auditors, manages contractual issues, and resolves disputes around quality and 
cost. 

  
2.2 This Committee has previously discussed the strains on the current audit system 

that have manifested themselves across the nation in delayed audits and in some 
cases concerns around the quality and attentiveness of the external auditors. 

  
2.3 These issues have led to a review into the local government external audit system 

and an acceptance that the resource required to deliver acceptable audits would 
likely need to increase. 

  
2.4 Since the last Committee the Group has received two sets of correspondence from 

the PSAA that update on a consultation on changes to the expected cost of the 
2022/23 audit and the results of the procurement processes for the audits that will 
commence for the 2023/24 audits onward. 

  
2.5 Correspondence notes that the consultation on fee-scale changes is 

recommending an increase to audit costs to meet the burden of new activity, 
recurring costs not included in the original fee-scale and inflation. PSAA have 
committed to using their financial reserves to offsetting the inflation element of 
these costs. 

  
2.6 Based upon the documentation received by the Group these additional costs 

amount to c. £3k for both SYPTE and the MCA. It is the considered view of officers 
that these increases are not unreasonable given the increased work that has been 
required over recent audits. 

  

Page 26



2.7 Correspondence also highlights the results of PSAA’s procurement processes for 
the five-year audit period that will commence with the audit of the 2023/24 
accounts. 

  
2.8 PSAA indicate that six companies have been successful in bidding for a share of 

work, with two new entrants joining the framework: 
  
 Company Share of Work 

Grant Thornton        36.0% 

Mazars        22.5% 

Ernst & Young        20.0% 

KPMG        14.0% 

Bishop Fleming        3.75% 

Azets Audit Services        3.25% 
 

  
2.9 PSAA have also indicated that the cost of the audit is likely to increase by around 

150%. The scale of this increase is significant and likely to result in concern across 
the sector, with additional costs increasing the burden on already stressed public 
finances. 

  
2.10 For the MCA Group this additional cost is likely to equate to around £90k p/a. 

PSAA have indicated that they will raise this issue with Government, seeking 
additional resource for the sector. In recent years Government have made 
additional funding available for audit fees – reflecting one-off circumstances arising 
from the Covid impact – but it is far from clear that a sustainable settlement will be 
forthcoming. 

  
2.11 The MCA Group’s ability to challenge or control these costs is limited. Whilst it can 

respond to the consultation on the fee-scale review the procurement exercise 
undertaken by the PSAA does remain the most efficient means of securing external 
audit services, generating economies of scale that the Group would be unable to 
replicate if procuring independently. 

  
2.12 PSAA will determine who to award the Group contracts to in the coming months, 

taking account of geography, existing relationships, and balance around the size 
and fees of audits. 

  
  

3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal 
  
3.1 Option 1 
 Accept the proposals within the fee scale consultation. 
  
4. Consultation on Proposal: 
  
4.1 Engagement with the Audit, Standards, and Risk Committee. 
  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 The decision will be implemented by the PSAA unless the MCA and others object. 
  

Page 27



6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 The report notes the likelihood of increases to the cost of the Group’s external 

audits. 
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 The MCA has previously opted-in to the arrangements of the PSAA. 
  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 N/A 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 N/A 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 N/A 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 N/A 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice  

 
12.1 N/A 

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Correspondence 
   

Background Papers 
N/A 
  
  

 

Page 28



From: Appointing Person 2023 <AP2@psaa.co.uk> 
Sent: 24 August 2022 12:23

Subject: PSAA announcement of interim procurement outcome - South Yorkshire Mayoral
Combined Authority

Dear Mr Sutton,

Today we have issued the following short press release to provide an update on the
progress with our procurement of audit services from 2023/24 onwards.
We are pleased to have reached this position but know we are not quite there yet. We
are calling on the market, on whom we are wholly dependent, to respond positively to
enable us to achieve the capacity we need.
As the press release mentions we will provide a further announcement once the
supplementary procurement has concluded.
PSAA’s current procurement of local audit services is about to enter a concluding stage.
The initial process has secured 96.5% of the capacity required to enable auditor
appointments to all the bodies that have opted into PSAA’s national scheme. A rapid
supplementary procurement of four small-sized Lots will now take place to seek to
secure the remaining outstanding capacity needed.

The supplementary procurement will be launched on 25 August 2022. The nine
registered suppliers that completed pre-qualification earlier this year will be invited to
submit their responses by 13 September.

PSAA will make a full statement about the outcomes of the overall procurement in
September as soon as the process has reached its conclusion.

Yours sincerely,
Julie Schofield, Senior Manager Business and Procurement, PSAA

Page 29

mailto:AP2@psaa.co.uk


From: Work and fees consultation <workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk> 
Sent: 22 August 2022 10:39

Subject: Consultation on the 2022/23 audit fee scale for opted-in bodies - South Yorkshire
Mayoral Combined Authority

Dear Mr Sutton,
PSAA is consulting on the fee scale for 2022/23 audits. This is the final fee scale under 
PSAA’s current audit contracts, which cover audits of the financial statements of opted-in 
bodies for the five-year period 2018/19 to 2022/23. Audit work under the proposed 
2022/23 fee scale will largely be undertaken from autumn 2023 onwards.
This fee scale consultation is separate from the procurement exercise PSAA is 
undertaking for audit contracts that will apply for the next five years, for audits from 
2023/24. An announcement on the outcome of the procurement will be made in the near 
future. Audit work under the new contracts will take place from 2024 onwards. Any audit 
fee implications arising from the results of the procurement will be covered by our 
consultation on the 2023/24 fee scale in twelve months’ time.
Consultees will be aware that auditors and auditing have been subject to very high 
levels of scrutiny in recent times following a number of widely reported financial failures 
in the private sector. These changes have resulted in significant tensions and pressures 
in the wider audit market and profession and have led to a series of government-
commissioned reviews of audit and audit regulation. The Department for Levelling Up 
Housing and Communities (DLUHC) has announced a range of measures to be 
implemented to address the issues identified in the local audit framework specifically. 
These include a new system leader role to be discharged by a new regulator, the Audit 
Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) when it is established under future 
legislation.
This consultation on the 2022/23 fee scale is taking place in the context of these 
pressures and changes. The consultation explains how PSAA proposes to calculate the 
audit fees which will make up the 2022/23 fee scale, managing the impact of three key 
elements:

· fee variations approved in relation to 2019/20 and 2020/21 audit work which
relate to recurrent audit work that is needed in subsequent audit years;

· changes in local audit requirements; and
· the impact of changes in inflation.

We explain in the consultation how we propose to address each of these elements. We
will be writing to all opted-in bodies in early September to confirm their individual
positions on approved fee variations from prior years that relate to additional audit work
needed on an ongoing basis, which we will consolidate into individual scale fees for
2022/23.  
In addition to the consultation on the 2022/23 fee scale, we are also publishing a
briefing to support fee variation discussions between opted-in bodies and auditors for
the 2021/22 audits. The briefing sets out further information on the expected impact on
audit fees of the additional work now needed under the Code of Audit Practice 2020 for
auditors to produce a VFM commentary, and of other changes in auditing and

accounting standards.
We welcome comments from all stakeholders on the proposals contained in the
2022/23 fee scale consultation. Please send your feedback using this link.
The consultation will close on Friday 30 September 2022.
Please send any questions about the consultation to
workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk
Your sincerely
Tony Crawley, Chief Executive, PSAA

Page 30

https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2022-23-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-audit-framework-technical-consultation/outcome/government-response-to-local-audit-framework-technical-consultation
https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2022-23-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/consultation-document-2022-23-audit-fee-scale/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2021-22-auditor-appointments-and-fee-scale/additional-information-for-2021-22-audit-fees/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2021-22-auditor-appointments-and-fee-scale/additional-information-for-2021-22-audit-fees/


From: Work and fees consultation <workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk> 
Sent: 12 September 2022 15:57

Subject: Proposed 2022/23 scale fees for South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority

Dear Mr Sutton,
PSAA is consulting on the fee scale for 2022/23 audits. This is the final fee scale under 
PSAA’s current audit contracts, which cover audits of the financial statements of opted-
in bodies for the five-year period 2018/19 to 2022/23.
Attached to this email is a summary of the recurring fees we propose to consolidate into 
the 2022/23 scale fee for South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority.

If you have comments or questions in relation to this email and the attached fee 
consolidation summary, please reply to workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk. The fee 
scale consultation closes on 30 September 2022.

We will publish the confirmed 2022/23 fee scale on our website at the end of November 
2022, together with the updated scale fees for individual opted-in bodies.

Yours sincerely,
Tony Crawley
Chief Executive, PSAA

Page 31

https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2022-23-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/consultation-document-2022-23-audit-fee-scale/
mailto:workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk



 


Please send any questions about this information to workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk 


Produced on: 9 September 2022 


2022/23 scale fee for South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority  


PSAA is consulting on the fee scale for 2022/23 audits. Your proposed scale fee based on the 


consultation proposals is set out below. 


Our aim is to keep your audit fee as up-to-date as possible based on the most recent information 


we have available. We propose setting your 2022/23 scale fee by updating your 2021/22 scale fee 


with the most recent recurring fee variations we have approved in relation to your audit. Table 1 


below provides a summary of your proposed 2022/23 scale fee. 


Table 1:  2022/23 scale fee summary*   


2021/22 scale fee £29,414 


Recurring approved fee variations for consolidation into 2022/23 scale fees (see Table 2) £3,126 


2022/23 scale fee £32,540 


* Please note: the fee scale consultation also refers to the contractual inflationary increase in auditor remuneration, which PSAA 
proposes to fund from monies that would otherwise be part of a future distribution to opted-in bodies. Further details are set out in 
the consultation. 


 


In line with the Appointing Person Regulations, we cannot change your 2022/23 scale fee after 30 


November 2022. Any further recurring fee variations or changes approved after 30 November will 


therefore be considered in a future fee scale. 


We will not be consolidating additional fees needed for work on the VFM commentary and ISA 540 


into the 2022/23 scale fee as we do not currently have sufficient information to enable us to do so. 


The additional work will continue to be subject to the fee variation process and consolidated into a 


future fee scale when the evidence base is sufficiently robust.  


Table 2 below sets out the fee variations approved to date for your audit over the three audit years 


2018-21 in respect of additional work performed on groups, pension valuations, PIE, PPE 


valuations, increased FRC challenge and PFI (left-hand side of Table 2). These figures are taken 


from the Fee Variation Statements we have sent you for approved fee variations.  


The fee variations shown for each of the three audit years are not necessarily final figures. In some 


cases, for example, where audits have yet to be completed, further fee variation claims are 


expected. The recurring elements of any further fee variations approved will be addressed in future 


fee scale consultations. 


The proposed aggregate value of recurring fee variations to date for consolidation into your 


2022/23 scale fees is shown in column A of Table 2 and is based on the most recent approved fee 


variations for your audit.  


Sometimes fee variations can be a combination of recurring and non-recurring work. We have 


reviewed each fee variation to identify the recurring element/s within the categories and so the 


aggregate recurring element may differ from the lefthand side of the table (the figures included in 


your Fee Variation Statement).  


Some of these recurring fee variations may have already been consolidated within your scale audit 


fee. Where this is the case relevant figures are shown in column B. The balance of any recurring 


fee variations (A minus B) which have not yet been consolidated are shown in column C. These 


are the additional fees which we propose to incorporate within your 2022/23 scale fee. 


 



mailto:workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk

https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2022-23-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/consultation-document-2022-23-audit-fee-scale/





 


 


Table 2: Summary of recurring approved fee variations for consolidation into 2022/23 scale 
fees 


Fee variation area of work Approved fee variations  Proposed 
aggregate 


recurring value 
for 


consolidation 
into 2022/23 
scale fees 


 2018/19 
already 


consolidated 
into 2021/22 
scale fees 


Recurring 
approved fee 
variations for 
consolidation 
into 2022/23 
scale fees  


2018/19 2019/20 2020/21  A  B A-B=C 


Group - - -   -   - - 


Pension valuation  - £2,501 -   £3,126    - £3,126 


PIE  - - -   -    - - 


PPE valuation  - - -   -   - - 


Increased FRC Challenge  - - -   -   - - 


PFI  - - -   -   - - 


Total approved fee 
variations for recurring 
categories 


- £2,501 -   £3,126   - £3,126 


 
 







 

Please send any questions about this information to workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk 

Produced on: 9 September 2022 

2022/23 scale fee for South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority  

PSAA is consulting on the fee scale for 2022/23 audits. Your proposed scale fee based on the 

consultation proposals is set out below. 

Our aim is to keep your audit fee as up-to-date as possible based on the most recent information 

we have available. We propose setting your 2022/23 scale fee by updating your 2021/22 scale fee 

with the most recent recurring fee variations we have approved in relation to your audit. Table 1 

below provides a summary of your proposed 2022/23 scale fee. 

Table 1:  2022/23 scale fee summary*   

2021/22 scale fee £29,414 

Recurring approved fee variations for consolidation into 2022/23 scale fees (see Table 2) £3,126 

2022/23 scale fee £32,540 

* Please note: the fee scale consultation also refers to the contractual inflationary increase in auditor remuneration, which PSAA 
proposes to fund from monies that would otherwise be part of a future distribution to opted-in bodies. Further details are set out in 
the consultation. 

 

In line with the Appointing Person Regulations, we cannot change your 2022/23 scale fee after 30 

November 2022. Any further recurring fee variations or changes approved after 30 November will 

therefore be considered in a future fee scale. 

We will not be consolidating additional fees needed for work on the VFM commentary and ISA 540 

into the 2022/23 scale fee as we do not currently have sufficient information to enable us to do so. 

The additional work will continue to be subject to the fee variation process and consolidated into a 

future fee scale when the evidence base is sufficiently robust.  

Table 2 below sets out the fee variations approved to date for your audit over the three audit years 

2018-21 in respect of additional work performed on groups, pension valuations, PIE, PPE 

valuations, increased FRC challenge and PFI (left-hand side of Table 2). These figures are taken 

from the Fee Variation Statements we have sent you for approved fee variations.  

The fee variations shown for each of the three audit years are not necessarily final figures. In some 

cases, for example, where audits have yet to be completed, further fee variation claims are 

expected. The recurring elements of any further fee variations approved will be addressed in future 

fee scale consultations. 

The proposed aggregate value of recurring fee variations to date for consolidation into your 

2022/23 scale fees is shown in column A of Table 2 and is based on the most recent approved fee 

variations for your audit.  

Sometimes fee variations can be a combination of recurring and non-recurring work. We have 

reviewed each fee variation to identify the recurring element/s within the categories and so the 

aggregate recurring element may differ from the lefthand side of the table (the figures included in 

your Fee Variation Statement).  

Some of these recurring fee variations may have already been consolidated within your scale audit 

fee. Where this is the case relevant figures are shown in column B. The balance of any recurring 

fee variations (A minus B) which have not yet been consolidated are shown in column C. These 

are the additional fees which we propose to incorporate within your 2022/23 scale fee. 

 

Page 32

mailto:workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk
https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2022-23-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/consultation-document-2022-23-audit-fee-scale/


 

 

Table 2: Summary of recurring approved fee variations for consolidation into 2022/23 scale 
fees 

Fee variation area of work Approved fee variations  Proposed 
aggregate 

recurring value 
for 

consolidation 
into 2022/23 
scale fees 

 2018/19 
already 

consolidated 
into 2021/22 
scale fees 

Recurring 
approved fee 
variations for 
consolidation 
into 2022/23 
scale fees  

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21  A  B A-B=C 

Group - - -   -   - - 

Pension valuation  - £2,501 -   £3,126    - £3,126 

PIE  - - -   -    - - 

PPE valuation  - - -   -   - - 

Increased FRC Challenge  - - -   -   - - 

PFI  - - -   -   - - 

Total approved fee 
variations for recurring 
categories 

- £2,501 -   £3,126   - £3,126 

 
 

Page 33



From: Work and fees consultation <workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk> 
Sent: 12 September 2022 15:57

Subject: Proposed 2022/23 scale fees for South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive

Dear Mr Sutton,
PSAA is consulting on the fee scale for 2022/23 audits. This is the final fee scale under 
PSAA’s current audit contracts, which cover audits of the financial statements of opted-
in bodies for the five-year period 2018/19 to 2022/23.
Attached to this email is a summary of the recurring fees we propose to consolidate into 
the 2022/23 scale fee for South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive.

If you have comments or questions in relation to this email and the attached fee 
consolidation summary, please reply to workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk. The fee 
scale consultation closes on 30 September 2022.

We will publish the confirmed 2022/23 fee scale on our website at the end of November 
2022, together with the updated scale fees for individual opted-in bodies.

Yours sincerely,
Tony Crawley
Chief Executive, PSAA

Page 34

https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2022-23-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/consultation-document-2022-23-audit-fee-scale/
mailto:workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk



 


Please send any questions about this information to workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk 


Produced on: 9 September 2022 


2022/23 scale fee for South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 
Executive  


PSAA is consulting on the fee scale for 2022/23 audits. Your proposed scale fee based on the 


consultation proposals is set out below. 


Our aim is to keep your audit fee as up-to-date as possible based on the most recent information 


we have available. We propose setting your 2022/23 scale fee by updating your 2021/22 scale fee 


with the most recent recurring fee variations we have approved in relation to your audit. Table 1 


below provides a summary of your proposed 2022/23 scale fee. 


Table 1:  2022/23 scale fee summary*   


2021/22 scale fee £27,613 


Recurring approved fee variations for consolidation into 2022/23 scale fees (see Table 2) £3,126 


2022/23 scale fee £30,739 


* Please note: the fee scale consultation also refers to the contractual inflationary increase in auditor remuneration, which PSAA 
proposes to fund from monies that would otherwise be part of a future distribution to opted-in bodies. Further details are set out in 
the consultation. 


 


In line with the Appointing Person Regulations, we cannot change your 2022/23 scale fee after 30 


November 2022. Any further recurring fee variations or changes approved after 30 November will 


therefore be considered in a future fee scale. 


We will not be consolidating additional fees needed for work on the VFM commentary and ISA 540 


into the 2022/23 scale fee as we do not currently have sufficient information to enable us to do so. 


The additional work will continue to be subject to the fee variation process and consolidated into a 


future fee scale when the evidence base is sufficiently robust.  


Table 2 below sets out the fee variations approved to date for your audit over the three audit years 


2018-21 in respect of additional work performed on groups, pension valuations, PIE, PPE 


valuations, increased FRC challenge and PFI (left-hand side of Table 2). These figures are taken 


from the Fee Variation Statements we have sent you for approved fee variations.  


The fee variations shown for each of the three audit years are not necessarily final figures. In some 


cases, for example, where audits have yet to be completed, further fee variation claims are 


expected. The recurring elements of any further fee variations approved will be addressed in future 


fee scale consultations. 


The proposed aggregate value of recurring fee variations to date for consolidation into your 


2022/23 scale fees is shown in column A of Table 2 and is based on the most recent approved fee 


variations for your audit.  


Sometimes fee variations can be a combination of recurring and non-recurring work. We have 


reviewed each fee variation to identify the recurring element/s within the categories and so the 


aggregate recurring element may differ from the lefthand side of the table (the figures included in 


your Fee Variation Statement).  


Some of these recurring fee variations may have already been consolidated within your scale audit 


fee. Where this is the case relevant figures are shown in column B. The balance of any recurring 


fee variations (A minus B) which have not yet been consolidated are shown in column C. These 


are the additional fees which we propose to incorporate within your 2022/23 scale fee. 


 



mailto:workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk

https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2022-23-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/consultation-document-2022-23-audit-fee-scale/





 


 


Table 2: Summary of recurring approved fee variations for consolidation into 2022/23 scale 
fees 


Fee variation area of work Approved fee variations  Proposed 
aggregate 


recurring value 
for 


consolidation 
into 2022/23 
scale fees 


 2018/19 
already 


consolidated 
into 2021/22 
scale fees 


Recurring 
approved fee 
variations for 
consolidation 
into 2022/23 
scale fees  


2018/19 2019/20 2020/21  A  B A-B=C 


Group - - -   -   - - 


Pension valuation  - £2,501 -   £3,126    - £3,126 


PIE  - - -   -    - - 


PPE valuation  - - -   -   - - 


Increased FRC Challenge  - - -   -   - - 


PFI  - - -   -   - - 


Total approved fee 
variations for recurring 
categories 


- £2,501 -   £3,126   - £3,126 


 
 







 

Please send any questions about this information to workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk 

Produced on: 9 September 2022 

2022/23 scale fee for South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 
Executive  

PSAA is consulting on the fee scale for 2022/23 audits. Your proposed scale fee based on the 

consultation proposals is set out below. 

Our aim is to keep your audit fee as up-to-date as possible based on the most recent information 

we have available. We propose setting your 2022/23 scale fee by updating your 2021/22 scale fee 

with the most recent recurring fee variations we have approved in relation to your audit. Table 1 

below provides a summary of your proposed 2022/23 scale fee. 

Table 1:  2022/23 scale fee summary*   

2021/22 scale fee £27,613 

Recurring approved fee variations for consolidation into 2022/23 scale fees (see Table 2) £3,126 

2022/23 scale fee £30,739 

* Please note: the fee scale consultation also refers to the contractual inflationary increase in auditor remuneration, which PSAA 
proposes to fund from monies that would otherwise be part of a future distribution to opted-in bodies. Further details are set out in 
the consultation. 

 

In line with the Appointing Person Regulations, we cannot change your 2022/23 scale fee after 30 

November 2022. Any further recurring fee variations or changes approved after 30 November will 

therefore be considered in a future fee scale. 

We will not be consolidating additional fees needed for work on the VFM commentary and ISA 540 

into the 2022/23 scale fee as we do not currently have sufficient information to enable us to do so. 

The additional work will continue to be subject to the fee variation process and consolidated into a 

future fee scale when the evidence base is sufficiently robust.  

Table 2 below sets out the fee variations approved to date for your audit over the three audit years 

2018-21 in respect of additional work performed on groups, pension valuations, PIE, PPE 

valuations, increased FRC challenge and PFI (left-hand side of Table 2). These figures are taken 

from the Fee Variation Statements we have sent you for approved fee variations.  

The fee variations shown for each of the three audit years are not necessarily final figures. In some 

cases, for example, where audits have yet to be completed, further fee variation claims are 

expected. The recurring elements of any further fee variations approved will be addressed in future 

fee scale consultations. 

The proposed aggregate value of recurring fee variations to date for consolidation into your 

2022/23 scale fees is shown in column A of Table 2 and is based on the most recent approved fee 

variations for your audit.  

Sometimes fee variations can be a combination of recurring and non-recurring work. We have 

reviewed each fee variation to identify the recurring element/s within the categories and so the 

aggregate recurring element may differ from the lefthand side of the table (the figures included in 

your Fee Variation Statement).  

Some of these recurring fee variations may have already been consolidated within your scale audit 

fee. Where this is the case relevant figures are shown in column B. The balance of any recurring 

fee variations (A minus B) which have not yet been consolidated are shown in column C. These 

are the additional fees which we propose to incorporate within your 2022/23 scale fee. 

 

Page 35

mailto:workandfeesconsultation@psaa.co.uk
https://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors-and-fees/list-of-auditor-appointments-and-scale-fees/2022-23-auditor-appointments-and-audit-fee-scale/consultation-document-2022-23-audit-fee-scale/


 

 

Table 2: Summary of recurring approved fee variations for consolidation into 2022/23 scale 
fees 

Fee variation area of work Approved fee variations  Proposed 
aggregate 

recurring value 
for 

consolidation 
into 2022/23 
scale fees 

 2018/19 
already 

consolidated 
into 2021/22 
scale fees 

Recurring 
approved fee 
variations for 
consolidation 
into 2022/23 
scale fees  

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21  A  B A-B=C 

Group - - -   -   - - 

Pension valuation  - £2,501 -   £3,126    - £3,126 

PIE  - - -   -    - - 

PPE valuation  - - -   -   - - 

Increased FRC Challenge  - - -   -   - - 

PFI  - - -   -   - - 

Total approved fee 
variations for recurring 
categories 

- £2,501 -   £3,126   - £3,126 

 
 

Page 36



Sent: 03 October 2022 13:47

Dear Mr Sutton,
Today we have announced the outcome of our procurement for audit services for 
opted-in bodies from 2023/24 onwards.

In summary we have offered contracts to six suppliers. We are pleased to retain 
the services of three existing suppliers, Grant Thornton, Mazars and Ernst & 
Young, to welcome former supplier KPMG back to the market, and to be entering 
into contracts with two new suppliers, Bishop Fleming and Azets Audit Services.

The bid prices that we received in this procurement reflect a significant increase 
compared to our previous procurement in 2017. At this stage our advice to bodies 
is to anticipate a major re-set of total fees for 2023/24 involving an increase of the 
order of 150% on the total fees for 2022/23. The actual total fees will depend on 
the amount of work required.

We appreciate that the extent of this likely increase in audit fees will pose a 
significant funding challenge for local bodies already facing a daunting range of 
financial pressures. We have raised this with DLUHC for consideration.

You can read the full press release via our website.
Yours sincerely,
Julie Schofield, Senior Manager Business and Procurement, PSAA

Page 37

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2022/10/press-release-psaa-announcement-of-procurement-outcome/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

19 October 2022 
 

External Audit Plan Update 
 

 
Is the paper exempt from the 
press and public? 
 

No 

Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Funding Stream: 
 

Not applicable 

Is this a Key Decision No 
  
Has it been included on the 
Forward Plan? 

Not a Key Decision 

 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Hassan Rohimun, Ernst Young 
 

 
Recommendations:   
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are asked to consider the findings and 
recommendations of the external audit plan update. 
 
Appendices 
Appendix A – SYMCA Audit Planning Report 2021-22 
Appendix B – SYPTE Audit Planning Report 2021-22 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



Sheffield City Region
Mayoral Combined
Authority Group
Audit planning report
Year ended 31 March 2022

18 October 2022

P
age 41



2

Private and Confidential

18 October 2022

Dear Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Members

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2021/22 audit in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2020 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit, and outlines our planned audit strategy
in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and management, and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 18 October 2022 as well as understand whether there are other matters which
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Hassan Rohimun

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority
11 Broad Street West
Sheffield
S1 2BQ

P
age 42



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It
summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated July 2021)” issued by the PSAA (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/terms-of-appointment-and-further-
guidance-1-july-2021/) sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and
covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and management of Sheffield City Region MCA in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and management of Sheffield City Region MCA those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Committee and management of Sheffield City Region MCA for this report or for the opinions we have
formed. It should not be provided to any third party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our
21/22 audit
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit
materiality04 Scope of our

audit05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit
timeline07 Independence08

Value for
Money risks03

V
F
M

P
age 43



4

Overview of our 2021/22 audit
strategy01 01

P
age 44



5

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus
Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details
Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition

Fraud risk

No change in risk or focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by
Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors
should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

Misstatements due to fraud or
error

Fraud risk
No change in risk or focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would otherwise
appear to be operating effectively.

LGPS –Pension Liability
Valuation

Other financial

statement risk
No change in risk or focus

The accounting entries relating to the Local Government Pension Schemes are
underpinned by significant assumptions and estimates. There is therefore an increased
risk of misstatement and error.

Valuation of Property, Plant
and  Equipment

Other financial

statement risk
No change in risk or focus The Group has a material asset base that is subject to management judgements.

Valuation of assets is an area subject to professional estimation and therefore a higher
inherent risk of misstatement.

Implementation of IFRS16
Leases

Other financial
statement risk

Change in risk or focus The implementation of IFRS16 has now been delayed until 2024/25

ISA 570 Going Concern and
Disclosure considerations Inherent risk No change in risk or focus

The unpredictability of the current environment gives rise to a risk that the Group
would not appropriately disclose the key factors impacting the year of account, or
relating to going concern underpinned by management’s assessment of the Group’s
actual year-end financial position and forecast for the going concern period of a
minimum of 12 months after the auditor’s report date.

Accounting for Covid-19
grants Inherent risk No change in risk or focus

The Group received a series of grants from the UK government during 2021/22 in
support for the pandemic crisis management. We identified the accounting treatment
of those grants as an area of focus since this is a significant change in the funding
streams for accounting by the Group.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit, Standards and Risk
Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.

P
age 45



6

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Materiality

Audit
differences

£0.208m

Materiality has been set at £4.153m, which represents 2% of the prior year’s gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £3.115m, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement)
greater than £0.208m.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they
merit the attention of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee.

Planning
materiality

£4.153m

Performance
materiality

£3.115m

P
age 46



7

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy
Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

 Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Sheffield City Region MCA give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2022 and of the
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

 Our commentary on your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of resources for the relevant period. We include further details on VFM in Section 03.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the MCA’s Whole of Government Accounts return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

 Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
 Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
 The quality of systems and processes;
 Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
 Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the MCA.

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to assess independently the risks associated with
providing an audit opinion and undertake appropriate procedures in response to that. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee dependent on
“the auditors assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees has not kept pace with
the changing requirements of external audit with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the valuation of pension
obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9 and 15 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting the ISA 540 (revised) and
the value for money conclusion. Therefore to the extent any of these or any other risks are relevant in the context of the audit, we will discuss any impact on the fee
with management.

Effects of climate-related matters on financial statements and Value for Money arrangements
Public interest in climate change is increasing. We are mindful that climate-related risks may have a long timeframe and therefore while risks exist, the impact on the
current period financial statements may not be immediately material. It is nevertheless important to understand the relevant risks to make this evaluation. In addition,
understanding climate-related risks may be relevant in the context of qualitative disclosures in the notes to the financial statements and value for money arrangements.
We make inquiries regarding climate-related risks on every audit as part of understanding the entity and its environment. As we re-evaluate our risk assessments
throughout the audit, we continually consider the information that we have obtained to help us assess the level of inherent risk.

P
age 47



8

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Value for money conclusion

We include details in Section 03 but in summary:

 We are required to consider whether the MCA has made ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

 Planning on value for money and the associated risk assessment is focused on gathering sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the MCAs
arrangements, to enable us to draft a commentary under three reporting criteria (see below). This includes identifying and reporting on any significant weaknesses
in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations.

 We will provide a commentary on the MCA’s arrangements against three reporting criteria:
 Financial sustainability - How the MCA plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;
 Governance - How the MCA ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and
 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the MCA uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and

delivers its services.

 The commentary on VFM arrangements will be included in the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Audit team changes

Key changes to our team.

Engagement manager
Susan Gill

P
age 48



9

Audit risks02 01

P
age 49



10

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

What will we do?

We will carry out substantive procedures in response to this risk. The
procedures designed to address the identified risk are set out below:

• Document our understanding of the processes and controls in place to
mitigate the risks.

• Identify and walk through those processes and controls, confirming our
understanding.

• Review income and expenditure recognition policies and confirm
consistency of application through performance of testing.

• Identify significant accounting estimates for revenue and expenditure,
discussing assumptions and calculation methodology with management

• Test the identified significant accounting estimates to confirm
appropriateness and consistency with supporting records considering
evidence of bias.

• Sample test material revenue and expenditure streams with a focus on
assets and liabilities at the year-end.

• Testing of revenue cut-off at the period end date.
• Conduct testing to identify unrecorded liabilities at the year-end.
• Testing a sample of Property Plant and Equipment additions to confirm

that the expenditure has been appropriately capitalised.

Testing of revenue and expenditure will be supported through the use of
data analytics tools to support sample selection. The data analysis tools
enable the full population of income and expenditure to be included within
the sample population. The population will be filtered to enable testing to
focus on higher risk areas, high value and unusual transactions.

Financial statement impact

Misstatements that occur in
relation to the risk of fraud in
revenue and expenditure
recognition could affect the income
and expenditure accounts. These
accounts had the following
balances in the 2020/21 financial
statements:

Income Account: £186.1m

Expenditure Account: £182.2m

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10
issued by the Financial Reporting MCA, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk
that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

We consider that this significant risk is
associated to the following specific areas:

• Improper capitalisation of revenue
expenditure in order to reduce the
impact on the general fund

•  Improper application of revenue cut-off

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition

P
age 50



11

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)
What will we do?

• Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages.
• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in

place to address those risks
• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of

management’s processes over fraud
• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed

to address the risk of fraud
• Determining an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks of

fraud
• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified

fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments in
the preparation of the financial statements

Testing of journals from the accounting period that are identified from
application of specified audit risk criteria.
• Consider the existence of significant unusual transactions during the
year, and performing review and testing as required.
• Consider the results of testing relating to revenue and expenditure
recognition in order to identify indicators of management override of
controls.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free
of material misstatements whether caused by
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or
error

P
age 51



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings
The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the MCA’s accounts and are
subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges.
Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply
estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the
balance sheet.

We will:
• Consider the work performed by the MCA’s valuers, including the adequacy of the

scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their
work;

• Sample testing key asset information used by the valuers in performing their
valuation (e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued
within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for
IP. We have also considered if there are any specific changes to assets that have
occurred and that these have been communicated to the valuer;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 20xx/xx to confirm that the remaining
asset base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation;
and

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

Pension Liability Valuation
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the MCA
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by
South Yorkshire Pensions Authority (SYPA).
The MCA’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code
requires that this liability be disclosed on the MCA’s balance sheet. At 31
March 2022 this was £27.9 million, a decrease of £10.3 million from the
previous year.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the MCA by
the actuary to the County MCA.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement
and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations
on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures
on the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value
estimates.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of SYPA,  to obtain assurances over the information

supplied to the actuary for the MCA;
• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Mercers) including the assumptions

they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned
by the National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and
considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team;

• Evaluate the reasonableness of the Pension Fund actuary’s calculations by
comparing them to the outputs of our own auditor’s actuarial model; and

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the MCA’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 52



13

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

ISA 570 Going Concern and Disclosure considerations

There is a presumption that the Combined Authority will continue
as a going concern for the foreseeable future based on the
continued provision of public services. However, the Combined
Authority is required to carry out a going concern assessment that
is proportionate to the risks it faces. There is a need for the
Combined Authority to ensure its going concern assessment,
including its cashflow forecast, is thorough and appropriately
comprehensive. The Combined Authority is required to ensure that
disclosures within the statement of accounts adequately reflects its
going concern assessment and in particular highlights any
uncertainties it has identified.

We will:

• Continue to assess the adequacy of disclosures required in 2020/21, and the impact on our
opinion, should these be inadequate;

• Obtain management’s going concern assessment and review for any evidence of bias and
consistency with the accounts;

• Review the financial modelling and forecasts prepared by the Combined Authority. This will
consider key assumptions, stress testing applied to  those assumptions and consider the risk to
cashflow up to at least 12 months after the signing date of the accounts and opinion;

• Ensure that an appropriate going concern disclosure has been made within the financial
statements; and

• Considered the impact on our audit report and comply with EY consultation requirements, if
such are determined appropriate.

Accounting for Covid-19 grants

Central Government have provided a number of new and different
Covid-19 related grants to local authorities during the year.

The Combined Authority needs to review each of these to establish
the correct accounting treatment. It needs to assess whether it is
acting as a principal or agent, with the accounting to follow that
decision. For those where the decision is a principal, it also needs
to assess whether there are any outstanding conditions that may
also affect the recognition of the grants as revenue during
2021/22.

On a sample of the Covid-19 grants and funding population we will:
• Review the accounting guidance applied by the Combined Authority and assess whether the

appropriate guidance was considered and correctly applied;
• Review whether any conditions are attached to grants impacting their recognition;
• Assess whether the accounting appropriately follows those judgements; and
• Ensure sufficient and appropriate disclosures are included in the accounts.

P
age 53



14

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 54



15

Value for Money

The MCA’s responsibilities for value for money

The MCA is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while safeguarding and
securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with the financial statements, the MCA is required to bring together commentary on the governance framework and how this
has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing the governance statement, the MCA tailors the content to reflect its own individual
circumstances, consistent with the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having regard to any guidance issued in support of
that framework. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on arrangements for securing value for money from the use of resources.

V
F
M

Auditor responsibilities

Under the NAO Code of Audit Practice we are required to consider whether the MCA has ‘proper
arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. The Code
requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to
report to MCA a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements the
MCA has in place to secure value for money through economic, efficient and effective use of its
resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

 Financial sustainability - How the MCA plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to
deliver its services.

 Governance - How the MCA ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its
risks.

 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the MCA uses information about its costs
and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

Arrangements for
securing value for money

Financial
Sustainability

Improving
Economy,

Efficiency &
Effectiveness

Governance

P
age 55



16

Value for Money
Planning and identifying risks of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

The NAO’s guidance notes requires us to carry out a risk assessment which gathers sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the MCA’s
arrangements, in order to enable us  to draft a commentary under the three reporting criteria. This includes identifying and reporting on any significant
weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations.

In considering the MCA’s arrangements, we are required to consider:
• The MCA’s governance statement;
• Evidence that the MCA’s arrangements were in place during the reporting period;
• Evidence obtained from our work on the accounts;
• The work of inspectorates and other bodies; and
• Any other evidence source that we regards as necessary to facilitate the performance of our statutory duties.

We then consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. The NAO’s guidance is clear that the assessment
of what constitutes a significant weakness and the amount of additional audit work required to adequately respond to the risk of a significant weakness in
arrangements is a matter of professional judgement. However, the NAO states that a weakness may be said to be significant if it:
• Exposes – or could reasonably be expected to expose – the MCA to significant financial loss or risk;
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – significant impact on the quality or effectiveness of service or on the MCA’s reputation;
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – unlawful actions; or
• Identifies a failure to take action to address a previously identified significant weakness, such as failure to implement or achieve planned progress on

action/improvement plans.

We should also be informed by a consideration of:
• The magnitude of the issue in relation to the size of the MCA;
• Financial consequences in comparison to, for example, levels of income or expenditure, levels of reserves (where applicable), or impact on budgets or

cashflow forecasts;
• The impact of the weakness on the MCA’s reported performance;
• Whether the issue has been identified by the MCA’s own internal arrangements and what corrective action has been taken or planned;
• Whether any legal judgements have been made including judicial review;
• Whether there has been any intervention by a regulator or Secretary of State;
• Whether the weakness could be considered significant when assessed against the nature, visibility or sensitivity of the issue;
• The impact on delivery of services to local taxpayers; and
• The length of time the MCA has had to respond to the issue.

V
F
M

P
age 56



17

Value for Money
Responding to identified risks of significant weakness

Where our planning work has identified a risk of significant weakness, the NAO’s guidance requires us to consider what additional evidence is needed to
determine whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and undertake additional procedures as necessary, including where appropriate, challenge
of management’s assumptions. We are required to report our planned procedures to the Audit, Standards and Risk committee.

V
F
M

Reporting on VFM
Where we are not satisfied that the MCA has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources the Code
requires that we should refer to this by exception in the audit report on the financial statements.

In addition, the Code requires us to include the commentary on arrangements in the Auditor’s Annual Report. The Code states that the commentary should be
clear, readily understandable and highlight any issues we wish to draw to the MCA’s attention or the wider public. This should include details of any
recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of recommendations issued previously, along with our view as to whether they have been implemented
satisfactorily.

Status of our 2021/22 VFM planning

We have completed our initial VFM (value for money) risk planning work, where we have considered:

• Our entity level controls and understanding the business assessment
The MCA’s Risk Register
The Annual Governance Statement
MCA meeting minutes
Our planning meetings with management
Key financial and budget information/ Key performance reports
Internal audit reports

• We have not at this stage identified significant weaknesses in the MCA’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of
resources. We will review in the light of our other audit work as this progresses.

P
age 57



18

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 58



19

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2021/22 has been set at £4.153m. This
represents 2% of the Group’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. We have provided supplemental
information about audit materiality in Appendix c.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£146m
Planning

materiality

£4.153m

Performance
materiality

£3.115m
Audit

differences

£0.208m

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at
£3.115m which represents 75% of planning materiality.

Component performance materiality range – we determine component
performance materiality as a percentage of Group performance materiality
based on risk and relative size to the Group. For Combined Authority’s
single entity financial statements this has been set at £3.115m

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. The same threshold for
misstatements is used for component reporting. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement and balance sheet, that have an effect
on income or that relate to other comprehensive income.

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit and
Standards Committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective.

Key definitions

We request that the Audit and Standards Committee confirm its understanding of, and
agreement to, these materiality and reporting levels.

Component
performance
materiality

£3.115m

P
age 59



20

Audit materiality

Materiality
The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all the
circumstances that might ultimately influence our judgement. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could be significant
to users of the financial statements, including the total effect of any audit misstatements, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

We also identify areas where misstatement at a lower level than our overall materiality level might influence the reader and develop an audit strategy specific to these
areas, including:
• Remuneration disclosures including member allowances: we will agree all disclosures back to source data, and member allowances to the agreed and approved

amounts.
• Related party transactions we will test the completeness of related party disclosures and the accuracy of all disclosures by checking back to supporting evidence.

P
age 60



21

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 61



22

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Authority’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK).

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Authority has ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 62



23

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2021/22 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee.

Internal audit:

We will meet with Internal Audit, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports
from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 63



24

Group scoping

Our audit strategy for performing an audit of an entity with multiple locations is risk based. We identify components as:
1. Significant components: A component is significant when it is likely to include risks of material misstatement of the group financial statements, either because of its

relative financial size to the group (quantitative criteria), or because of its specific nature or circumstances (qualitative criteria). We generally assign significant
components a full or specific scope given their importance to the financial statements.

2. Not significant components: The number of additional components and extent of procedures performed depended primarily on: evidence from significant
components, the effectiveness of group wide controls and the results of analytical procedures.

For all other components we perform other procedures to confirm that there is no risk of material misstatement within those locations. These procedures are detailed
below.

Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit

Scoping by Entity

Our preliminary audit scopes by number of locations we have adopted are
set out below. We provide scope details for each component within
Appendix A.

Full scope audits

Specific scope audits

Review scope audits

Specified procedures

2 A

0 B

0 C

0 D

0 E Other procedures

Scope definitions

Full scope: locations where a full audit is performed to the materiality levels assigned
by the Group audit team for purposes of the consolidated audit. Procedures performed
at full scope locations support an interoffice conclusion on the reporting package.
These may not be sufficient to issue a stand-alone audit opinion on the local statutory
financial statements because of the materiality used and any additional procedures
required to comply with local laws and regulations.
Specific scope: locations where the audit is limited to specific accounts or disclosures
identified by the Group audit team based on the size and/or risk profile of those
accounts.
Review scope: locations where procedures primarily consist of analytical procedures
and inquiries of management. On-site or desk top reviews may be performed, according
to our assessment of risk and the availability of information centrally.
Specified Procedures: locations where the component team performs procedures
specified by the Group audit team in order to respond to a risk identified.
Other procedures: For those locations that we do not consider material to the Group
financial statements in terms of size relative to the Group and risk, we perform other
procedures to confirm that there is no risk of material misstatement within those
locations. Individually, these components do not exceed more than 0.01% of the
Group’s Gross Expenditure on provision of services

P
age 64



25

Scope of our audit

Scoping the group audit (continued)
Coverage of Revenue/Total assets

Based on the group’s prior year results, our scoping is expected to achieve the
following coverage of the group’s gross revenue expenditure and total assets

Our audit approach is risk based and therefore the data above on coverage is
provided for your information only. Further details on the scoping of the Group
audit can be found at Appendix D.

A

of the group’s forecast revenue
will be covered by full scope audits

100%
(2020/21: 100%)

Revenue

A

of the group’s forecast total assets
will be covered by full scope audits

100%
(2020/1: 100%)

Total
assets

Details of other procedures

• Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority prepares group accounts,
consolidating the results of two subsidiaries; South Yorkshire Passenger
Transport Executive and SCR Financial Interventions Holding Company Ltd.

• EY is the appointed auditor of South Yorkshire Passenger Transport
Executive and the results of this Authority are material to the Group. This will
be treated as a full scope audit for Group purposes. We have prepared a full
Audit Planning Report to be presented to the Audit, Standards and Risk

Committee.
• The consolidated results of SCR Financial Interventions Holding Company Ltd

are not material to the results of the Group and have been held at nil value at the
end of 2020/21. We do not anticipate any change in value in 2021/22 and
therefore do not plan to perform any work.

P
age 65



26

Audit team06 01

P
age 66



27

Audit team

Audit Team
The engagement team is led by Hassan Rohimun – Audit Partner, who has significant Local Government experience. Hassan is supported by Susan Gill, who is responsible
for the day-to-day direction of audit work, and Alex Slack who is the key point of contact for the finance team.

We will engage specialists in the audit team where deemed necessary and the table below sets out our expectations of the use of specialists at the planning stage of the
audit.

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings Management’s valuation experts/EY Real Estates

Pensions disclosure EY Actuaries, PSAA consulting actuaries and Scheme actuary

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the MCA’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

P
age 67



28

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 68



29

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2021/22.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and we will discuss them with the
Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes.

July

Walkthrough of key systems and
processes

August

September

October Audit Committee Audit Planning Report

Year-end audit November

Audit Completion procedures December Audit Results Report

Final AAR reporting January Audit Committee Annual Auditor’s Report

P
age 69



30

Independence08 01

P
age 70



31

Introduction

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in December 2019, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
► Information about the general policies and process

within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit/additional services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any

non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
► Details of any non-audit/additional services to a UK PIE audit client where there are differences of

professional opinion concerning the engagement between the Ethics Partner and Engagement Partner and
where the final conclusion differs from the professional opinion of the Ethics Partner

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;

► Details of all breaches of the IESBA Code of Ethics, the FRC Ethical Standard and professional standards,
and of any safeguards applied and actions taken by EY to address any threats to independence; and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

P
age 71



32

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Group.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services;
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.
We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Hassan Rohimun, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report.

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Combined Authority.  Management threats may also arise during the
provision of a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.
There are no management threats at the date of this report.

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

P
age 72



33

Other communications

EY Transparency Report 2021

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity,
independence and integrity are maintained. Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be
found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2021:
https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2021

P
age 73



34

Appendices09 01

P
age 74



35

Appendix A

Fees

Final fee
2021/22

Scale fee
2021/22

Final Fee
2020/21

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 29,414 29,414 (Note 2) 29,414 (Note 1)
Pricing for quality TBC 21,324 21,324
Pensions TBC 2,500 – 3,500 2,500
Change in ledger system TBC 4,000
Value for money work TBC 2,500 – 3,500 2,500
Total fees TBC TBC 59,648

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local
Government.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements of
the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

.

All fees exclude VAT

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

 Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

 Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

 Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the MCA; and

 The MCA has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation
to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the MCA in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and
formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

(1) The 2020/21 Code work includes an additional fee of £30,234, which relates
to additional work listed in the table above. Management did not agree with the fee
variation which have been submitted to the PSAA for determination.

 Additional procedures to consider the MCA’s going concern assessment,
including our internal consultation requirement.

 The need to consider engaging EY Real Estates to review the valuation of PPE
and IP.

 The need to engage EY Pensions to review assumptions used in the Pensions
IAS19 liability.

In addition, we are driving greater innovation in the audit through the use of
technology. The significant investment costs in this global technology continue to
rise as we seek to provide enhanced assurance and insight in the audit.

(2) For 2021/22, the scale fee will be affected by a range of factors which will
result in additional work. We set out an estimate of the potential additional fee for
this above any additional fees will require PSAA approval. The issues we have
identified at the planning stage which will impact on the fee include:

P
age 75



36

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in the
engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from
the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and

presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit, Standards and Risk
Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee.

P
age 76



37

Appendix B

Required communications with the Committee (continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Subsequent events • Asking the audit committee (where appropriate) whether any subsequent events have
occurred that might affect the financial statements

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any
identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Committee responsibility

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report

P
age 77



38

Appendix B

Required communications with the Committee (continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity

and independence
Communication whenever significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit Planning Report and Audit Results
Report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and
regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Management letter/audit results report

P
age 78



39

Appendix B

Required communications with the Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Group audits • An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the
components

• An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant
components

• Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work

• Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team’s
access to information may have been restricted

• Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management,
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements

Audit planning report
Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit planning report
Audit results report

Value for Money • Risks of significant weakness identified in planning work
• Commentary against specified reporting criteria on the VFM arrangements, including

any exception report on significant weaknesses.

Audit planning report
Audit results report

P
age 79



40

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal controls.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the financial information to express an opinion on the consolidated financial

statements. Reading other information contained in the financial statements, the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee reporting
appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Committee and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our
understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Objective of our audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK) as prepared by you in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, and as interpreted and adopted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.
Our responsibilities in relation to the financial statement audit are set out in the formal terms of engagement between the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.
We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of the Audit,
Standards and Risk Committee. The audit does not relieve management or the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee of their responsibilities.

P
age 80



41

Appendix C

Additional audit information (continued)

Purpose and evaluation of materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.

Materiality determines the level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

Procedures required by the
Audit Code

• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual
Governance Statement.

• Examining and reporting on the consistency of consolidation schedules or returns with the MCA’s audited financial statements for
the relevant reporting period

Other procedures • We are required to discharge our statutory duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
and Code of Audit Practice

We have included in Appendix B a list of matters that we are required to communicate to you under professional standards.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit (continued)

P
age 81



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2019 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 82



South Yorkshire
Passenger Transport
Executive
Audit planning report
Year ended 31 March 2022

18 October 2022

P
age 83



2

Private and Confidential

18 October 2022

Dear Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Members

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2021/22 audit in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2020 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit, and outlines our planned audit strategy
in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and management, and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 18 October 2022 as well as understand whether there are other matters which
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Hassan Rohimun

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive
11 Broad Street West
Sheffield
S1 2BQ

P
age 84



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It
summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated July 2021)” issued by the PSAA (https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/terms-of-appointment-and-further-
guidance-1-july-2021/) sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and
covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and management of South Yorkshire PTE in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and management of South Yorkshire PTE those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Committee and management of South Yorkshire PTE for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It
should not be provided to any third party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our
21/22 audit
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit
materiality04 Scope of our

audit05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit
timeline07 Independence08

Value for
Money risks03

V
F
M

P
age 85



4

Overview of our 2021/22 audit
strategy01 01

P
age 86



5

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition – Incorrect
capitalisation of revenue expenditure

Fraud risk Change in risk or
focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by
Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting PTE, which states that auditors
should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition. However we note that in 2021/22, total
capital expenditure is below materiality. This may not be the case in future years

Implementation of IFRS16 Leases Other financial
statement risk

Change in risk or
focus

The implementation of IFRS16 has now been delayed until 2024/25

Local government pension scheme:
pension liability valuation

Other financial
statement risk

No change in risk or
focus

The accounting entries relating to the Local Government Pension Schemes are
underpinned by significant assumptions and estimates. There is therefore an
increased risk of misstatement and error.

Valuation of Property, Plant and
Equipment

Other financial
statement risk No change in risk or

focus

The PTE has a material asset base that is subject to management judgements.
Valuation of assets is an area subject to professional estimation and therefore a
higher inherent risk of misstatement.

ISA 570 Going Concern and
Disclosure considerations Inherent risk No change in risk or

focus

The unpredictability of the current environment gives rise to a risk that the Group
would not appropriately disclose the key factors impacting the year of account, or
relating to going concern underpinned by management’s assessment, the Group’s
actual year-end financial position and forecast for the going concern period of a
minimum of 12 months after the auditor’s report date.

Accounting for Covid-19 grants Inherent risk No change in risk or
focus

The Group received a series of grants from the UK government during 2020/21 in
support for the pandemic crisis management. We identified the accounting
treatment of those grants as an area of focus since this is a significant change in
the funding streams for accounting by the Group.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit, Standards and Risk
Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the forthcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.

P
age 87



6

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Materiality

Audit
differences

£0.087m

Materiality has been set at £1.742m, which represents 2% of the prior year’s gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £1.306m, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement)
greater than £0.087m.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they
merit the attention of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee.

Planning
materiality

£1.742m Performance
materiality

£1.306m

P
age 88



7

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy
Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

 Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of South Yorkshire PTE give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2022 and of the
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

 Our commentary on your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of resources for the relevant period. We include further details on VFM in Section 03.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the PTE’s Whole of Government Accounts return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

 Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
 Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
 The quality of systems and processes;
 Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
 Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the PTE.

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to assess independently the risks associated with
providing an audit opinion and undertake appropriate procedures in response to that. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee dependent on
“the auditors assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees has not kept pace with
the changing requirements of external audit with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the valuation of pension
obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9 and 15 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting the ISA 540 (revised) and
the value for money conclusion. Therefore to the extent any of these or any other risks are relevant in the context of the audit, we will discuss any impact on the fee
with management.

Effects of climate-related matters on financial statements and Value for Money arrangements
Public interest in climate change is increasing. We are mindful that climate-related risks may have a long timeframe and therefore while risks exist, the impact on the
current period financial statements may not be immediately material. It is nevertheless important to understand the relevant risks to make this evaluation. In addition,
understanding climate-related risks may be relevant in the context of qualitative disclosures in the notes to the financial statements and value for money arrangements.
We make inquiries regarding climate-related risks on every audit as part of understanding the entity and its environment. As we re-evaluate our risk assessments
throughout the audit, we continually consider the information that we have obtained to help us assess the level of inherent risk.

P
age 89



8

Overview of our 2021/22 audit strategy

Value for money conclusion

We include details in Section 03 but in summary:

 We are required to consider whether the PTE has made ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

 Planning on value for money and the associated risk assessment is focused on gathering sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the PTEs
arrangements, to enable us to draft a commentary under three reporting criteria (see below). This includes identifying and reporting on any significant weaknesses
in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations.

 We will provide a commentary on the PTE’s arrangements against three reporting criteria:
 Financial sustainability - How the PTE plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;
 Governance - How the PTE ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and
 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the PTE uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and

delivers its services.

 The commentary on VFM arrangements will be included in the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Audit team changes

Key changes to our team.

Engagement manager
Susan Gill

P
age 90



9

Audit risks02 01

P
age 91



10

Audit risks

Response to significant risks
What will we do?

• Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages.
• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in

place to address those risks
• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of

management’s processes over fraud
• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed

to address the risk of fraud
• Determining an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks of

fraud
• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified

fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments in
the preparation of the financial statements

Testing of journals from the accounting period that are identified from
application of specified audit risk criteria.
• Consider the existence of significant unusual transactions during the
year, and performing review and testing as required.
• Consider the results of testing relating to revenue and expenditure
recognition in order to identify indicators of management override of
controls.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free
of material misstatements whether caused by
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or
error

P
age 92



11

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings
The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the PTE’s accounts and are
subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges.
Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply
estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the
balance sheet.

We will:
• Consider the work performed by the PTE’s valuers, including the adequacy of the

scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their
work;

• Sample testing key asset information used by the valuers in performing their
valuation (e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued
within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for
IP. We have also considered if there are any specific changes to assets that have
occurred and that these have been communicated to the valuer;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2021/22 to confirm that the remaining
asset base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation;
and

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

Pension Liability Valuation
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the PTE
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by
South Yorkshire Pensions Authority (SYPA).
The PTE’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code
requires that this liability be disclosed on the PTE’s balance sheet. At 31
March 2022 this was £23.2 million, a decrease of £10.8 million from
2020/21.
The information disclosed is based on the IAS19 report issued to the PTE by
the actuary.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement
and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations
on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures
on the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value
estimates.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of SYPA,  to obtain assurances over the information

supplied to the actuary for the PTE;
• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Mercers) including the assumptions

they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned
by the National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and
considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team;

• Evaluate the reasonableness of the Pension Fund actuary’s calculations by
comparing them to the outputs of our own auditor’s actuarial model; and

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the PTE’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 93



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

ISA 570 Going Concern and Disclosure considerations

There is a presumption that the PTE will continue as a going
concern for the foreseeable future based on the continued
provision of public services. However, the PTE is required to carry
out a going concern assessment that is proportionate to the risks it
faces. There is a need for the PTE to ensure its going concern
assessment, including its cashflow forecast, is thorough and
appropriately comprehensive. The PTE is required to ensure that
disclosures within the statement of accounts adequately reflects its
going concern assessment and in particular highlights any
uncertainties it has identified.

We will:

• Continue to assess the adequacy of disclosures required in 2021/22, and the impact on our
opinion, should these be inadequate;

• Obtain management’s going concern assessment and review for any evidence of bias and
consistency with the accounts;

• Review the financial modelling and forecasts prepared by the PTE. This will consider key
assumptions, stress testing applied to  those assumptions and consider the risk to cashflow up
to at least 12 months after the signing date of the accounts and opinion;

• Ensure that an appropriate going concern disclosure has been made within the financial
statements; and

• Considered the impact on our audit report and comply with EY consultation requirements, if
such are determined appropriate.

Accounting for Covid-19 grants

Central Government have provided a number of different Covid-19
related grants to local authorities during the year.

The PTE needs to review each of these to establish the correct
accounting treatment. It needs to assess whether it is acting as a
principal or agent, with the accounting to follow that decision. For
those where the decision is a principal, it also needs to assess
whether there are any outstanding conditions that may also affect
the recognition of the grants as revenue during 2021/22.

On a sample of the Covid-19 grants and funding population we will:
• Review the accounting guidance applied by the PTE and assess whether the appropriate

guidance was considered and correctly applied;
• Review whether any conditions are attached to grants impacting their recognition;
• Assess whether the accounting appropriately follows those judgements; and
• Ensure sufficient and appropriate disclosures are included in the accounts.

P
age 94



13

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 95



14

Value for Money

The PTE’s responsibilities for value for money

The PTE is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while safeguarding and
securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with the financial statements, the PTE is required to bring together commentary on the governance framework and how this
has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing the governance statement, the PTE tailors the content to reflect its own individual
circumstances, consistent with the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having regard to any guidance issued in support of
that framework. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on arrangements for securing value for money from the use of resources.

V
F
M

Auditor responsibilities

Under the NAO Code of Audit Practice we are required to consider whether the PTE has ‘proper
arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. The Code
requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to
report to the PTE a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements
the PTE has in place to secure value for money through economic, efficient and effective use of its
resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

 Financial sustainability - How the PTE plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to
deliver its services.

 Governance - How the PTE ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks.

 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness - How the PTE uses information about its costs
and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

Arrangements for
securing value for money

Financial
Sustainability

Improving
Economy,

Efficiency &
Effectiveness

Governance

P
age 96



15

Value for Money
Planning and identifying risks of significant weakness in VFM arrangements

The NAO’s guidance notes requires us to carry out a risk assessment which gathers sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the PTE’s
arrangements, in order to enable us  to draft a commentary under the three reporting criteria. This includes identifying and reporting on any significant
weaknesses in those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations.

In considering the PTE’s arrangements, we are required to consider:
• The PTE’s governance statement;
• Evidence that the PTE’s arrangements were in place during the reporting period;
• Evidence obtained from our work on the accounts;
• The work of inspectorates and other bodies; and
• Any other evidence source that we regards as necessary to facilitate the performance of our statutory duties.

We then consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. The NAO’s guidance is clear that the assessment
of what constitutes a significant weakness and the amount of additional audit work required to adequately respond to the risk of a significant weakness in
arrangements is a matter of professional judgement. However, the NAO states that a weakness may be said to be significant if it:
• Exposes – or could reasonably be expected to expose – the PTE to significant financial loss or risk;
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – significant impact on the quality or effectiveness of service or on the PTE’s reputation;
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – unlawful actions; or
• Identifies a failure to take action to address a previously identified significant weakness, such as failure to implement or achieve planned progress on

action/improvement plans.

We should also be informed by a consideration of:
• The magnitude of the issue in relation to the size of the PTE;
• Financial consequences in comparison to, for example, levels of income or expenditure, levels of reserves (where applicable), or impact on budgets or

cashflow forecasts;
• The impact of the weakness on the PTE’s reported performance;
• Whether the issue has been identified by the PTE’s own internal arrangements and what corrective action has been taken or planned;
• Whether any legal judgements have been made including judicial review;
• Whether there has been any intervention by a regulator or Secretary of State;
• Whether the weakness could be considered significant when assessed against the nature, visibility or sensitivity of the issue;
• The impact on delivery of services to local taxpayers; and
• The length of time the PTE has had to respond to the issue.

V
F
M

P
age 97



16

Value for Money
Responding to identified risks of significant weakness

Where our planning work has identified a risk of significant weakness, the NAO’s guidance requires us to consider what additional evidence is needed to
determine whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and undertake additional procedures as necessary, including where appropriate, challenge
of management’s assumptions. We are required to report our planned procedures to the Audit, Standards and Risk committee.

V
F
M

Reporting on VFM
Where we are not satisfied that the PTE has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources the Code
requires that we should refer to this by exception in the audit report on the financial statements.

In addition, the Code requires us to include the commentary on arrangements in the Auditor’s Annual Report. The Code states that the commentary should be
clear, readily understandable and highlight any issues we wish to draw to the PTE’s attention or the wider public. This should include details of any
recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of recommendations issued previously, along with our view as to whether they have been implemented
satisfactorily.

Status of our 2021/22 VFM planning

We have completed our initial VFM (value for money) risk planning work, where we have considered:

• Our entity level controls and understanding the business assessment
The PTE’s Risk Register
The Annual Governance Statement
PTE meeting minutes
Our planning meetings with management
Key financial and budget information/ Key performance reports
Internal audit reports

• We have not at this stage identified significant weaknesses in the PTE’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of
resources. We will review in the light of our other audit work as this progresses.

P
age 98



17

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 99



18

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2021/22 has been set at £1.742m. This
represents 75% of the PTE’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. We have provided supplemental
information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£85.1m
Planning

materiality

£1.742m

Performance
materiality

£1.306m
Audit

differences

£0.087m

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at
£1.306m which represents 75% of planning materiality. This reflects the
overall risk factors associated with the audit and a history of few errors.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement and balance sheet, where there is an
effect on income or that relate to other comprehensive income.

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit,
Standards and Risk committee, or are important from a qualitative
perspective.

Key definitions

We request that the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee confirm its understanding of,
and agreement to, these materiality and reporting levels.

P
age 100



19

Audit materiality

Materiality
The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all the
circumstances that might ultimately influence our judgement. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could be significant
to users of the financial statements, including the total effect of any audit misstatements, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

We also identify areas where misstatement at a lower level than our overall materiality level might influence the reader and develop an audit strategy specific to these
areas, including:
• Remuneration disclosures including member allowances: we will agree all disclosures back to source data, and member allowances to the agreed and approved

amounts.
• Related party transactions we will test the completeness of related party disclosures and the accuracy of all disclosures by checking back to supporting evidence.

P
age 101



20

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 102



21

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the PTE’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK).

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the PTE has ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 103



22

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2021/22 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee.

Internal audit:
We will meet with Internal Audit, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together with reports
from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 104



23

Audit team06 01

P
age 105



24

Audit team

Audit Team
The engagement team is led by Hassan Rohimun – Audit Partner, who has significant Local Government experience. Hassan is supported by Susan Gill, who is responsible
for the day-to-day direction of audit work, and Alex Slack who is the key point of contact for the finance team.

We will engage specialists in the audit team where deemed necessary and the table below sets out our expectations of the use of specialists at the planning stage of the
audit.

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings Management’s valuation experts/EY Real Estates

Pensions disclosure EY Actuaries, PSAA consulting actuaries and Scheme actuary

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the PTE’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

P
age 106



25

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 107



26

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2021/22.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee and we will discuss them with the
Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes.

July

Walkthrough of key systems and
processes

August

Year-end audit September

Year-end audit October Audit Committee Audit Planning Report

November

Audit Completion procedures December Audit Results Report

Final AAR reporting January Audit Committee Annual Auditor’s Report

P
age 108



27

Independence08 01

P
age 109



28

Introduction

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in December 2019, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
► Information about the general policies and process

within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit/additional services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any

non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
► Details of any non-audit/additional services to a UK PIE audit client where there are differences of

professional opinion concerning the engagement between the Ethics Partner and Engagement Partner and
where the final conclusion differs from the professional opinion of the Ethics Partner

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;

► Details of all breaches of the IESBA Code of Ethics, the FRC Ethical Standard and professional standards,
and of any safeguards applied and actions taken by EY to address any threats to independence; and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

P
age 110



29

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Group.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services;
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.
We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Hassan Rohimun, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report.

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Combined Authority.  Management threats may also arise during the
provision of a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.
There are no management threats at the date of this report.

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

P
age 111



30

Other communications

EY Transparency Report 2021

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity,
independence and integrity are maintained. Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be
found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2021:
https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2021

P
age 112



31

Appendices09 01

P
age 113



32

Appendix A
Fees

Final fee
2021/22

Scale fee
2021/22

Final Fee
2020/21

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 27,613 27,613 (Note 2) 27,613 (Note 1)
Pricing for quality TBC 17,867 17,867
Pensions work TBC 2,500 – 3,500 2,500
Value for money work TBC 2,500 – 3,500 2,500
Total fees TBC TBC 50,480

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local
Government.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements of
the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

.

All fees exclude VAT
The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

 Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

 Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

 Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the PTE; and

 The PTE has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation
to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the PTE in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and
formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

(1) The 2020/21 Code work includes an additional fee of £22,867, which relates
to additional work listed in the table above. Management did not agree with the fee
variation which have been submitted to the PSAA for determination.

.

 Additional procedures to consider the PTE’s going concern assessment,
including our internal consultation requirement.

 The need to consider engaging EY Real Estates to review the valuation of PPE
and IP, and to look at infrastructure assets in depth

 The need to engage EY Pensions to review assumptions used in the Pensions
IAS19 liability.

In addition, we are driving greater innovation in the audit through the use of
technology. The significant investment costs in this global technology continue to
rise as we seek to provide enhanced assurance and insight in the audit.

(2) For 2021/22, the scale fee will be affected by a range of factors (see page 9)
which will result in additional work. We set out an estimate of the potential
additional fee for this above any additional fees will require PSAA approval. The
issues we have identified at the planning stage which will impact on the fee include:

P
age 114



33

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in the
engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from
the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and

presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit, Standards and Risk
Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee.

P
age 115



34

Appendix B

Required communications with the Committee (continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Subsequent events • Asking the audit committee (where appropriate) whether any subsequent events have
occurred that might affect the financial statements

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any
identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Committee responsibility

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report

P
age 116



35

Appendix B

Required communications with the Committee (continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity

and independence
Communication whenever significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit Planning Report and Audit Results
Report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and
regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Management letter/audit results report

P
age 117



36

Appendix B

Required communications with the Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Group audits • An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the
components

• An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant
components

• Instances where the group audit team’s evaluation of the work of a component auditor
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor’s work

• Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team’s
access to information may have been restricted

• Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management,
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements

Audit planning report
Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit planning report
Audit results report

Value for Money • Risks of significant weakness identified in planning work
• Commentary against specified reporting criteria on the VFM arrangements, including

any exception report on significant weaknesses.

Audit planning report
Audit results report

P
age 118



37

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal controls.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the financial information to express an opinion on the consolidated financial

statements. Reading other information contained in the financial statements, the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee reporting
appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Committee and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our
understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Objective of our audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK) as prepared by you in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, and as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.
Our responsibilities in relation to the financial statement audit are set out in the formal terms of engagement between the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.
We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of the Audit,
Standards and Risk Committee. The audit does not relieve management or the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee of their responsibilities.

P
age 119



38

Appendix C

Additional audit information (continued)

Purpose and evaluation of materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.

Materiality determines the level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

Procedures required by the
Audit Code

• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual
Governance Statement.

• Examining and reporting on the consistency of consolidation schedules or returns with the PTE’s audited financial statements for
the relevant reporting period

Other procedures • We are required to discharge our statutory duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
and Code of Audit Practice

We have included in Appendix B a list of matters that we are required to communicate to you under professional standards.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit (continued)

P
age 120



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2019 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.comP
age 121



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

19 October 2022 
 

Strengthening Corporate Governance 
 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                   Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James 
Claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk  
 

 
Executive Summary 

This report provides an update on activity to strengthen corporate governance and increase 
oversight of the effectiveness of arrangements in place to control risk in key governance areas. 
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Continually improving governance enables the Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives 
in the most effective and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for people and 
businesses in South Yorkshire 
 

Recommendations   
The Committee is asked to note and comment on the report. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
N/A  

 
 
 

Page 123

Agenda Item 13

mailto:Claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


 
1.  Background  
  
1.1 The successful achievement of organisational objectives is reliant on robust 

governance, risk management and assurance processes. During the development 
of the target operating model for the integrated organisation an opportunity to 
strengthen the approach to corporate governance and assurance was recognised. 
This resulted in the establishment of a Corporate Governance function within the 
organisational structure. 
 
Further to this, a number of other activities are underway including the 
implementation of the new Risk Management Framework and the implementation 
of a Corporate Documentation Management Process. Alongside this, work is in 
progress to re-procure Internal Audit services for financial year 2022/23 onwards. 

  
1.2 In addition, recognising a shift in accountabilities as a result of the integration, 

Management Board is now in the process of establishing a forum to provide 
enhanced focus on governance and assurance.  

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 Corporate Assurance Board 

 
The purpose of the Corporate Assurance Board is to provide regular oversight of 
the effectiveness of arrangements in place to control risk in key governance areas 
and identify and address areas of concern and needing improvement.   
 
The Board will take place on a quarterly basis in line with already established 
corporate reporting cycles. This will also allow regular weekly Management Board 
meetings to retain focus on strategic and operational issues. 
 
Membership of the Board will be at officer level and will comprise the Management 
Team plus specialists from each of the governance areas as required. 
 
The first meeting of the Board is scheduled for the 8th November. It is proposed that 
the Committee receive a post meeting briefing on key issues.   

  
2.2 Assurance Mapping 

 
To prepare for the first meeting of the Board, the Corporate Governance team have 
been working with leads in each of the key governance areas undertaking an 
assurance mapping exercise adopting a proportionate ‘3 Lines of Defence’ 
approach. This is providing a structured means of identifying and mapping the main 
sources of assurance across key governance areas with the aim of providing a 
clearer picture of sources of assurance and establishing any gaps or overlaps. 
 
This body of evidence will support the continual assessment of the effectiveness of 
our internal controls or, conversely, highlight that, certain controls are either not 
being applied correctly, are ineffective or there are gaps that need to be addressed.  
 
This piece of work is particularly valuable following the integration of the MCA and 
PTE and the establishment of new functions, teams and ways of working.  In 

Page 124



addition, gaining a better understanding our sources of assurance, their scope and 
any gaps will assist in focusing the 2022-23 Internal Audit Plan on riskier areas. 
 

2.3 Key Governance Areas 
 
The activity has initially been focussed on the following key areas of governance: 
 

• Accessibility 

• Business Continuity 

• Estate and Assets 

• Financial and Budget Management 

• Health and Safety 

• Human Resources 

• Information Governance 

• Information Technology 

• Procurement 

• Standards 

• Transparency 
 

Work has been undertaken to brigade information for each area establishing: 
 

• The relevant legal/regulatory framework and any forthcoming changes that 
may impact on the organisation/operations 

• The organisational policy framework and whether documentation is out of 
date, actively under review or up to date 

• Assurance sources (1st, 2nd, 3rd line – including any scheduled internal or 
external audit activity) and any gaps or inadequacies 

• Any open internal audit actions 

• Any relevant governance improvement plan actions and progress against 
them 

• The risk profile 

• Any relevant Code of Corporate Governance commitments including 
evidence of compliance and any actions required 

• Any particular activity required to be undertaken in preparation for the formal 
dissolution of the PTE 

• Key metrics that are being measured or should be measured to monitor the 
effectiveness of controls 

 
It is anticipated that over time the format of the reporting will develop, and 
dashboards will be established to support ongoing monitoring and oversight. 
 

  

3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal 
  
3.1 Option 1 
 N/A 

  
4. Consultation on Proposal: 
  
4.1 N/A 
  

Page 125



5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 N/A 
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 N/A 
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 N/A 
  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 N/A 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 N/A 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 N/A 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 N/A 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice  

 
12.1 N/A 

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A None 
   

Background Papers 
N/A 
  
  

 

Page 126



 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

19 October 2022 
 

National Audit Office Report Summary –                                  
Challenging Climate Change Risk  

 
Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Purpose of this report: 
 

Monitoring/Assurance 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 
 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Steve Davenport, Principal Solicitor/Monitoring Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James 
Claire.james@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
 
Ruth Adams 
Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
 
 
Executive Summary 
This paper provides a summary of the NAO Report ‘Climate change risk: A good practice 
guide for Audit and Risk Assurance Committees’ and proposes options around how the 
Committee could gain further assurance on the organisations approach to the 
management of climate change risk.   
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Effective risk management is a key principle of good governance and decision making, 
which enables the MCA to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and 
efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South 
Yorkshire.  
 
 
 
 

Page 127

Agenda Item 14

mailto:Claire.james@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk
mailto:Ruth.adams@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


Recommendations   
Members are asked to note the summary and consider the options for gaining assurance 
on the effective management of climate change risks including the resilience of the 
organisation to the threat posed by climate and change and in meeting the challenges of 
achieving net zero. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
None x 

 
 

1.  Background  
  
1.1 The National Audit Office have produced a good practice guide for Audit and Risk 

Assurance Committees to help them recognise how climate change risks could 
manifest themselves. The guide aims to support committees in challenging senior 
management on their approach to managing such risks. 
 
The SYMCA Audit, Standards and Risk Committee have asked Officers to provide 
a summary of the report to assist them in providing appropriate challenge.   

  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 Part One (pages 4 to 9 of the NAO report) 

 
Part one of the report introduces ‘failure to take action against climate change’ as 
the most concerning global risk in the World Economic Forums 2021 ‘Global Risk 
Report’ and recognises that climate change risks are not a future concern but are 
impacting government organisations now and, with this in mind, sets out the 
importance of considering climate change risk with the same rigour as other 
strategic risks.  
 
The report distinguishes risks related to the physical effects of climate change on 
people and the environment, and the risks associated with the effects of the 
transition to a changing climate and the adaptation and mitigation work required 
and classifies them as follows: 
 

• Physical risks of climate change 
o Acute 
o Chronic 

• Transition risks of climate change 
o Adaptation 
o Mitigation 

• Risks specific to government and public sector organisations 
 
Examples of risks indicative to public sector organisations grouped by these 
classifications are included at appendix A. NB The risk management paper 
(agenda item 15) provides more detail on the Corporate Risk relating to ‘Net Zero, 
Sustainability/Climate Change’ 
 
The report also acknowledges that there are a number of opportunities available to 
businesses and trade from adaptation services, products and trade routes and also 

Page 128



opportunities around the growth of low carbon industries and technologies and de-
carbonisation.  
 

2.2 Part Two (pages 10 to 12 of the NAO report) 
 
Part two of the report sets out the overriding target expectation set by government 
of achieving net zero by 2050 and provides a helpful summary of the key UK and 
international legislation driving policies and targets (up to July 2021). The report 
suggests that constantly evolving policy on climate change can potentially bring 
about uncertainty to the risk landscape and that monitoring changing legislation can 
place government organisations in a better position to respond to emerging risks. 
 

2.3 Part Three (pages 13 to 37 of the NAO report) 
 
Part three of the report outlines how Audit and Risk Assurance Committees can 
support and challenge management on climate change risk and suggests key lines 
of enquiry structured against the HM Treasury Orange Book principles of risk 
management: 
 

• Governance and leadership 
• Integration 
• Collaboration and best information 
• Risk identification and assessment 
• Risk treatment 
• Risk monitoring 
• Risk reporting 
• Continual improvement 

 
Further detail on how the NAO have explored the relevance of these themes to 
climate change risk is provided at appendix B. 
 

2.4 Part Four (pages 38 of the NAO report) 
 
Part four of the report signposts members to good practice material and to existing 
reporting guidance for government. This includes ‘Accounting for the Effects of 
Climate Change’ which is supplementary guidance to HM Treasury’s Green Book. 
This guidance intended to support analysts and policymakers in making sure that 
the effects of climate change are taken into account when appraising policies, 
programmes and projects. This guidance is currently being used by SYMCA’s 
Economic Policy team to inform the development of a tool to assess the 
contribution that a Business Case would make to the 'greener' pillar of the Strategic 
Economic Plan. The tool will help applicants consider how their project could be 
adapted or modified to add value or impact around the net zero agenda. 
  

2.5 Report Appendices 
 
Appendix One  
(pages 39 to 45 of the NAO report) 

Provides a complete list of questions 
(102) that committees could ask aligned 
to the HM Treasury Orange Book 
principles of risk management 

Page 129



Appendix Two  
(pages 46 to 49 of the NAO report) 

Sets out the results of the survey 
undertaken by 42 Audit and Risk 
Assurance Committee chairs. 

Appendix Three  
(pages 50 and 51 of the NAO report) 

Provides a reading list of additional 
reports on the topic of Net Zero and 
Climate Change. 

Appendix Four  
(pages 52 to 55 of the NAO report) 

Provides suggested challenge questions 
in a quick reference format. 

 
 

2.6 Proposed Next Steps 
 

• The internal audit report on Net Zero is scheduled to be considered at the 
next meeting. It is proposed that the Executive Director, Infrastructure and 
Place and the Net Zero Project Director will attend to speak to both the IA 
report and the NAO document, and how in the context of both the MCA 
should move forward. 

 
• The Assurance Framework is schedule on the committee workplan for the 

January meeting to allow the Committee to input into the annual review. It is 
proposed that this report provides detail on tool referenced in section 2.4 
that will support decision making on environmental considerations on 
schemes. 

 
• The Committee are asked to consider if a workshop should be arranged to 

provide visibility over the range of activity invested in by the MCA that 
supports the Net Zero agenda.  

 
3. Consultation on Proposal  
  
3.1 N/A 
  
4. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
4.1 N/A 
  
5. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
5.1 There are no financial or procurement implications directly associated with this 

paper. 
  
6. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 There are no legal implications directly associated with this paper. 
  
7. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 There are no human resource implications directly associated with this paper. 
  
8. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no equality and diversity implications related to this report. 

Page 130



  
9. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 This paper summarises the NAO Report on climate change risk. 
  
10. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 There are no information and communication technology implications related to this 

report. 
 

11. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice   
 

11.1 There are no communications or marketing implications related to this report. 
 

List of Appendices Included 
 
A None 
   
Background Papers 
https://www.nao.org.uk/insights/climate-change-risk-a-good-practice-guide-for-audit-and-
risk-assurance-committees/   
  
  

 

Page 131

https://www.nao.org.uk/insights/climate-change-risk-a-good-practice-guide-for-audit-and-risk-assurance-committees/
https://www.nao.org.uk/insights/climate-change-risk-a-good-practice-guide-for-audit-and-risk-assurance-committees/


This page is intentionally left blank



Item 14 - Appendix A 
 

Risks indicative to public sector organisations in relation to climate change  
 

Physical risks of climate change 

• Acute Specific weather-related events lead to damaged buildings 
and infrastructure and disruption to services and supply 
chains 

• Chronic  
 
 

Gradual impact of changing temperatures (sea levels and 
coastal change) and volume of rainfall leads to infrastructure 
pressure 

• Both acute and chronic 
events 

Indirect economic and social impacts including supply chain 
disruptions, subsequent impacts from infrastructure damage 
(for example, lack of transport, communication, 
manufacturing) or market shifts (such as increases in 
insurance premiums, changes in the need for government 
support, consumer attitudinal and expectation changes) 

Transition risks of climate change – risks associated with transitioning to a lower-
carbon and more climate-resilient economy 

• Adaptation risks 
associated with the 
process of adjustment 
to actual or expected 
climate change 

Productivity 

• reduced workforce productivity due to higher temperatures 

• infrastructure disruption 

Financial and valuation 

• deteriorating effect on public assets and infrastructure 

• impact on financial markets and the valuation of any 
investments 

• financial investment in areas to mitigate future financial 
risks 

Strategic uncertainty 

• degree of uncertainty brought about by climate change 
and uncertainty about decarbonisation policy makes long 
term planning challenging 

Reputational 

• failure to adapt quickly to the threats posed by climate 
change damaging reputation 

• Mitigation the risks 
associated with making  
interventions to reduce 
emissions or enhance 
the sinks of 
greenhouse gases 

Policy and regulatory 

• changes to government policy could mean tighter 
regulation or higher taxation 

• businesses wishing to bid for major government 
contracts to have published clear and credible carbon 
reduction plans 

• potential for enhanced disclosures in 
annual and financial reporting and increased due 
diligence 

Litigation and liability  

• potential for liable for breaching future climate-related 
regulatory orders 

• failure to adequately disclose the extent of exposure to 
climate-related risks 

• consequences of undermining government targets e.g. 
emissions 

Page 133



Item 14 - Appendix A 
 

Technology  

• over reliance on energy-inefficient approaches 

• financial and cost impact to adapt to new technologies 

 

Risks specific to 
government and public 
sector organisations 

Policy leadership 

• failure of government to support its various policy 
objectives with a clear and coherent strategy 

Value for money  

• slow decisions to address the net zero challenge leads to 
increased costs longer term 

• decisions without sufficient consideration of risk leads to 
costly corrective action 

Accountability  

• lack of clarity on public sector body role and 
responsibility in achieving net zero leads to ineffective 
management of risk 

Coordination and delivery 

• lack of collaboration and co-ordination across central 
and local government leads to increased social and 
economic costs or failure to achieve statutory or 
strategic targets 

 

Page 134



Item 14 - Appendix B 
 

 

Using HM Treasury Orange Book Principles to structure key lines of enquiry into 
the management of climate change risk. 
 

Risk Management principle Key lines of enquiry 

Risk management shall 
be an essential part of 
governance and leadership, 
and fundamental to how 
the organisation is directed, 
managed and controlled 
at all levels 

Governance and leadership 
Responsibilities and 
accountabilities for climate risk management 
documented in order to achieve a fully 
integrated strategy. 

Risk management shall be an integral 
part of all organisational activities to 
support decision-making 
in achieving objectives 

Integration 
The management of climate change risks 
should be embedded into the organisation’s 
strategy. 

Risk management shall be collaborative 
and informed by the best available 
information and expertise. 

Collaboration and best information 
Capturing and understanding climate change 
risks beyond organisational boundaries. 

Risk management processes shall be 
structured to include risk identification 
and assessment to determine and 
prioritise how the risks should be 
managed. 

Risk identification and assessment 
Proactivity around the identification and 
assessment of climate change risks and 
opportunities. 

Risk management processes shall be 
structured to include the selection, 
design and implementation of risk 
treatment options that support 
achievement of intended outcomes and 
manage risks to an acceptable level. 

Risk treatment 
The options for treating and responding to 
identified climate change risks should be 
clearly articulated and the benefits balanced 
against costs or disadvantages. 

Risk management processes shall be 
structured to include the design and 
operation of integrated, insightful and 
informative risk monitoring. 

Risk monitoring 
Climate change risk monitoring and review 
should be embedded into wider organisational 
performance metrics ensuring integration into 
strategic objectives. 

Risk management processes shall be 
structured to include timely, accurate and 
useful risk reporting to enhance the 
quality of decision-making and to support 
management and oversight bodies 
in meeting their responsibilities. 
Information collected and presented 
should be accurate and robust and be 
able to withstand challenge 

Risk reporting 
Internal - internal climate change reporting 
should support the board’s assessment of 
whether decisions are being made within 
its risk appetite to successfully achieve the 
organisation’s objectives on climate change 
External - Climate-related risks should be 
reported transparently, accurately and 
consistently throughout the organisation’s 
Annual Report and Accounts 

Risk management shall be continually 
improved through learning and 
experience. 

Continual improvement 
A plan to address gaps in skills and 
knowledge should be identified should be 
developed. Lessons learned activity 
undertaken on risk identification and 
assessment should be undertaken. Lessons 
should be taken from other organisations. 

 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

19 October 2022 
 

Risk Management Monitoring Report 
 
Is the paper exempt from the press and public?    No 
  
Purpose of this report: 
 

                   Monitoring/Assurance 
 

Funding Stream:                          Not applicable 
 
Is this a Key Decision?                                                       No        
 
Has it been included on the Forward Plan?                     Not a Key Decision 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James, Head of Corporate Governance 
Claire.jamessouthyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 

Emily Hickey 
Emily.hickey@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk  
 
Liz Morris 
Liz.morris@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
 

Executive Summary 
This paper provides an update on the progress of the implementation of the Risk 
Management Framework and on the corporate risks of the Mayoral Combined Authority 
(MCA).  The latest version of the Corporate Risk Register is attached as Appendix A.  
A narrative summary setting out key activity the MCA is taking against the high and 
medium/high corporate risks and any closed or new risks since the last report in June is 
provided at section 3. 

 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire? 
Effective risk management is a key principle of good governance and decision making, 
which enables the MCA to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and 
efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South 
Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
ASRC members are asked to note and comment on the progress of the implementation of 
the Risk Management Framework and the Corporate Risk Monitoring Report. 
 

Page 137

Agenda Item 15

mailto:Liz.morris@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk
mailto:Emily.hickey@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk
mailto:Liz.morris@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
Not applicable  
  
1. Background  

 
1.1 Following the recommendation of the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee, the MCA 

approved the new Risk Management Framework at their meeting in July. 
 

2. 
 

Risk Management Framework Implementation 
 

2.1 The MCA risk management journey has continued to progress at pace. 
 
The implementation of the new Risk Management Framework and the risk 
management IT system has largely been delivered in line with the timetable shared 
with the Committee in July. 
 

July RAG 

 Agree the contract for the refreshed IT system 
 

 

 Commence recruitment of additional Governance Team resource   

 Risk Management Framework to be considered by the MCA   

 Agree the risk review timetable and clarify roles and responsibilities  

 Roll out into business as usual, promoting the value of risk management 
and demonstrating the commitment from senior management  

 

August  

 Publish the Framework on the website and include in the Corporate 
Documentation Library on the intranet and manage through agreed 
process  

 

 Supporting content/resources available on intranet   

 Live IT system configured and single sign on arrangements in place  

 IT system training for Governance Team administrators   

 Corporate Risks migrated to the live IT environment  

 Annual awareness/comms plan agreed   

September  

 Business Plan/Directorate Risks (approximately 200-230) input into IT 
system  

 

 IT system training delivered to relevant officers across the MCA (this will 
be ongoing).   

 

 Ongoing delivery of risk workshops, to ensure continued visibility of the 
Framework and risks are effectively reviewed, refreshed and new risks 
identified 

 

 Induction module developed and in place  

 Team Risk Registers reviewed and refreshed in line with the reporting 
section of the Framework. 

 

 Directorate level reviews scheduled in line with the reporting requirements 
of the Framework. 

 

 
 

2.2 Issues (red and amber indicators) 
 
The recruitment of additional resource to the Corporate Governance team to support 
ongoing risk and assurance activity has not progressed due to an organisational 
review of vacant posts however, re-engagement with the Interim Risk Manager 

Page 138



commenced w/c 10th October to increase capacity to ensure continued focus on the 
implementation of the Risk Management Framework. 
 
An induction module, which will include some of the training resources (videos etc) 
developed as part of the implementation activity, will be established for the new year. 
 
Directorate/Team risk registers have been reviewed ahead of risks being added to the 
IT system and a monthly item has been scheduled, along with associated review 
deadlines, at Management Board to consider high and medium/high risks. This activity 
is currently marked as amber in the table above until the Corporate Governance team 
have configured the automated reminder functions in the IT system appropriately. 
 

2.2 Corporate Risk Monitoring 
 
The graphs and heatmap below provide a visual summary of current corporate risks.   
 
Corporate risks by ‘strategic group’ 
 
The following bar chart demonstrates the volume of risks and respective ratings by 
strategic ‘group’ (the categories established for reporting purposes) 
 

 
 
In summary:  
• the group with the greatest volume of risk is Organisational, which includes one 
high and one medium/high risk. 
• the group with the greatest volume of high-level risks is Transport.   
• Commissioned Operations and Delivery contains two medium/high risks 
• Organisational one medium/high risk   
 
Section 3 of this report provides a narrative against each of the high and medium/high 
corporate risks. 
 

0 1 2 3 4 5 6

Commissioned Operations & Delivery

Financial

Legal Compliance & Regulation

Operational Transport

Organisational

Policy

Corporate Risks by Strategic Group/Category

Low Medium Med/High High

Page 139



2.3 Corporate risks by ‘risk score’ 
 
The following graph demonstrates the spread of corporate risks by current risk score.  
 

 
 
 

2.4 Corporate risks by Directorate 
 
The following graph demonstrates the risks and where they reside within the 
directorates of the MCA.  
 

 
 
Infrastructure and Place Directorate holds the majority of high and medium/high risks.  
Whilst Finance and Infrastructure contains the greatest volume of risk albeit lower 
scored.   
 

2.5 
 

Heat Map 
 
The heat map (appendix B) provides a visual representation of the position of the 
risks within the probability and impact scoring grid.  There are three high level risks 
and three medium/high.  More information is provided in section 3.  
 
 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Corporate

Corporate Risks By Risk Score

Low Medium Med/High High

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Business & Skills

Strategy & Development

Finance & Investment

Infrastructure & Place

Corporate Risks by Directorate

Low Medium Med/High High

Page 140



2.6 Changes to the risk score since the last report 
 
The changes to the current risk score, since the last report, are indicated as follows: 
 
COR0007 – Net Zero, Sustainability/Climate Change  
 
Further consideration of the risk has resulted in a slightly higher risk score – 
‘medium/high’ to ‘high’ – recognising the work required to co-ordinate and aggregate 
activity. 
 
COR0020 – Inadequate Workforce Planning 
 
Due to the current mayoral organisational review a more conservative assessment of 
the level of risk has been taken resulting in a shift from ‘low’ to ‘medium’. This will be 
kept under review until the process has concluded.   
 

3. Narrative Report 
 
Detailed risk reporting below sets out the controls and actions against the high and 
medium/high risks and the risks that have been closed.  
 

3.1 High Risks (score of 16 – 25) 
 
COR0008 – Bus Recovery Funding (Residual score 20) 
 
Due to reduced/terminated recovery funding from central government and lower levels 
of patronage, there is a risk that we end up with an unviable transport system 
necessitating major cuts, resulting in a spiral of decline. 
 
Controls & Actions 
 
Recovery funding has now been secured until March 2023, the detail from January 
2023 is to be confirmed.  Dialogue with DfT officials and ministers is ongoing to shape 
existing and future proposals.  Protection of priority services has been established 
and funded from reserves, with the view of providing support and short-term 
mitigations to Summer 2023.  Payment of concessions at pre-pandemic rates is taking 
place until April 2023.  Adjustments to pre-pandemic rates proportionate to network 
mileage to allow underspend to be retained and potentially used for future network 
protection 
 
The MCA continues to work with government officials to influence process and 
funding.  Work is also ongoing with bus operators to identify services at most risk of 
reduction and prepare a prioritised list of services for consideration.  Arrangements 
will also need to be agreed for a return to concessionary payments (based on actuals) 
and opportunity to recycle any underspend to support services.   
 
COR0015 – Tram Services (Residual score 20) 
 
Due to a failure to conclude future operating model for tram services beyond the 
current operating concession, there is a risk that the MCA is exposed to operational 
transport and financial risks, resulting in financial and capability and capacity 
pressures. 
 
Controls & Actions 

Page 141



 
An interim Programme Director for Light Rail Transport Operation is in place and the 
Light Rail Development Programme established along with governance arrangements 
and reporting and engagement plans agreed. A tram project reserve has been agreed 
to support readiness activity. 
 
The MCA Board will consider proposals for the future tram operating model at their 
meeting on 18th October. 
 
COR0007 – Net Zero, Sustainability/Climate Change (Residual score 16) 
 
Due to an inability to galvanise the required level of support, consensus and 
leadership across the region, from our partners and stakeholders both private and 
public, there is a risk that the approach is fragmented, resulting in a failure to achieve 
the net zero target, by 2040. 
 
Controls & Actions 
 
The MCA’s response to the Net Zero agenda is embedded in its core activity and 
work is underway with partners and stakeholders to develop projects that take into 
account de-carbonisation.  
 
The MCA is working with Sheffield University to develop regional data to understand 
the impact of programmes and projects, in addition, a tool is under development to 
assess the contribution that a Business Case would make to the 'greener' pillar of the 
Strategic Economic Plan. The tool, aligned to supplementary guidance to HM 
Treasury’s Green Book, will help applicants consider how their project could be 
adapted or modified to add value or impact around the net zero agenda and ensure 
our response to net zero if integrated into investment decision making processes. In 
addition, work is underway to identify the interventions most impactful in address 
climate change issues. 
 

3.2 Medium/High Risks (score of 12 – 15) 
 
 
COR0017 – Transport (Residual score 15) 
Due to the award of the CRSTS programme funding will provide related regional 
capital funds for five years from April 2022 and will be closely monitored by DfT 
There is a risk that the capacity and capability in the region is insufficient to deliver 
extensive projects in the programme within timescale, resulting in potential damage to 
the reputation of the MCA and Mayor. 
 
Controls & Actions 
 
The MCA is working with local authority partners in developing and submitting project 
proposals more efficiently for the CRSTS programme.  Resource plans have been 
developed and the actions to implement the recommendation of the Business Process 
Reengineering Review have been implemented through the refreshed Assurance 
Framework including work to establish a Feasibility Fund.   
 
The MCA has reached agreement for disbursal of the CRSTS revenue grant, working 
with local authorities to agree individual plans for the Districts and continues to work 
with those partners to create a pipeline of activity and projects.   
 

Page 142



COR0021 - Heightened Cyber Security Threat (Residual score 15) 
Due to an increase in the number of cyber-attacks, due to the pandemic, there is a 
risk that there is a successful attack, resulting in operational disruption, data 
corruption, systems outage and loss of finances. 
 
Controls & Actions 
 
The MCA has an IT Policy, which is updated regularly.  Good practice password 
requirements are used including multi-factor authentication.  Long established anti-
virus software, which is updated hourly, is installed across the infrastructure.  
Mimecast, Advanced Threat Protection, is also installed and constantly evolves to 
address the latest threats whilst filtering and blocking emails.  Additional Web-Filtering 
software is utilised, which prohibits unauthorised access and protects data.  Software 
patching takes place to maintain systems security.  Outsourced specialist penetration 
testing takes place, which is part of the requirements of Cyber Security Essentials.   
 
Further analysis has been undertaken and action in train to achieve the Cyber 
Essentials Accreditation and this indicates that the majority of the requirements have 
been met.  Additional Management Board reporting of cyber threats and attacks 
prohibited is being developed as part of the development associated with the 
Corporate Assurance Board.  
 
COR0001 - Adult Education Budget Performance (Residual score 12) 
 
Due to performance monitoring of AEB provider delivery, under performance has 
been identified within the programme therefore, there is a risk that we fail to deliver all 
of the planned academic year outputs for the region and its people, resulting in 
reputational impact on the MCA and partners. 
 
Controls & Actions 
The MCA has set out and published Funding and Performance Rules, which set out 
the conditions by which providers are required to operate and how underperformance 
will be addressed.  Performance monitoring with all providers is underway to 
understand forecast delivery volumes and plans for delivery.  Additional performance 
reporting to Management Board and the MCA has taken place.  Redeployment of 
funding is an option for the MCA in underperforming areas.   
 
Further performance analysis is taking place to test outputs achieved to date to 
facilitate forecasts to the end of the year and inform additional remedial action.  An 
options paper is to be prepared and shared with Management Board and presented to 
the Skills Board and MCA.  Evaluation of 2021/22 approach is to be completed by the 
end of December 22 and this will be used to help determine the required provision 
and commissioning. 
 

3.3 Risks for De-escalation 
 
The most recent internal audit report recommended that Corporate Risk with ‘low’ risk 
scores could be de-escalated and managed at operational level. To apply this 
recommendation the following risks would be de-escalated and managed at 
Directorate level: 
 
COR006 - Dispersed ownership of inclusion policy objective 

Page 143



Due to dispersed strategic level ownership of the Inclusion policy objective, there is a 
risk that there will be a drift in direction, resulting in delayed and/or ineffectual delivery 
mechanisms and inefficient use of resources. 
 
COR0013 - Borrowing leads to financial risk 
Due to new borrowing vires, there is a risk that the MCA is exposed to new financial 
risk around exposure to interest rates and debt management and also a new 
compliance regime, resulting in HM Treasury consents for annual borrowing caps 
being required. 
 
COR0019 - Post Integration Embedding of Organisational Design 
Due to staff understanding of roles and responsibilities in the new organisation 
structure, there is a risk that there remains uncertainty about the structure, processes 
and respective roles of staff, resulting in a loss of momentum in delivering 
organisational goals. 
 
The Committee are asked to consider the recommendation to de-escalate these risks. 
 

3.4 
 

Escalated Risks 
 
All risks at Directorate/Business Plan level are now included in the new system. 
Management Board will consider, in the next quarter, the totality of the risks and 
review ‘high’ scored risks to determine if these should be escalated to Corporate level. 
 

3.5 Closed Risks 
 
The following risks have been closed since the last report: 
 

 COR0004 Mayoral Election 
 

 COR0005 Growth Imperative Hindered 
 

 COR0008 Integration 
 

 COR0011 Enhanced Partnership - DfT Funding 
 
Further detail is included in the risk register at appendix A. 
 

4. Consultation on Proposal  
  
4.1 Not applicable 

 
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision:   
  
5.1 Not applicable 
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice  
  
6.1 There are no specific financial risk implications however, failure to effectively manage 

risk may have significant financial and reputational impact and for the MCA. 
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice  
  
7.1 There are no legal implications as a result of this report. 

Page 144



  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 There are no human resources implications as a result of this report. 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 There are no equality and diversity implications as a result of this report. 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 There are no climate change implications as a result of this report. 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 There are no ICT implications as a result of this report. 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice 

 
12.1 There are no communications or marketing implications as result of this report. 
  
List of Appendices Included 
A Corporate Risk Register  
B Corporate Risk Heat Map  

Background Papers 
n/a 
 

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



High

Prefix Risk Title Owner Status Inherent Priority Residual Priority Risk Group

COR0007 Title: Net Zero, Sustainability/ Climate Change    
Due to: an inability to galvanise the required level of support, consensus and leadership across the
region, from our partners and stakeholders both private and public    
There is a risk that: the approach is fragmented    
Resulting in: a failure to achieve the net zero target, by 2040    

John Dowie Open High (20) High (16) Organisational

COR0009 Title: Bus: Recovery Funding    
Due to: Reduced/terminated recovery funding from central government and lower levels of patronage  
There is a risk that: We end up with an unviable transport system necessitating major cuts    
Resulting in: a spiral of decline    

Stephen Edwards Open High (25) High (20) Operational Transport

COR0015 Title: Tram Services    
Due to: Failure to conclude future operating model for tram services beyond the current operating
concession    
There is a risk that: MCA is exposed to operational transport and financial risks    
Resulting in: financial and capability and capacity pressures.    

Stephen Edwards Open High (25) High (20) Operational Transport

Medium/High

Prefix Risk Title Owner Status Inherent Priority Residual Priority Risk Group

COR0001 Title: Adult Education Budget Performance    
Due to: performance monitoring of AEB provider delivery, under performance has been identified 
within the programme 
There is a risk that: we fail to deliver all of the planned academic year outputs for the region and its 
people    
Resulting in: reputational impact on the MCA and partners.    

Gareth Sutton Open High (16) Medium/High (12) Commissioned Operations & 
Delivery

COR0017 Title: Transport    
Due to: The award of the CRSTS programme funding will provide related regional capital funds for five 
years from April 2022 and will be closely monitored by DfT    
There is a risk that: the capacity and capability in the region is insufficient to deliver extensive projects in 
the programme within timescale    
Resulting in: potential damage to the reputation of the MCA and Mayor.    

John Dowie Open High (20) Medium/High (15) Commissioned Operations & 
Delivery

COR0021 Title: Heightened Cyber Security Threat    
Due to: an increase in the number of cyber-attacks, due to the pandemic    
There is a risk that: there is a successful attack    
Resulting in: operational disruption, data corruption, systems outage and loss of finances.  

Gareth Sutton Open High (25) Medium/High (15) Organisational

Medium

Prefix Risk Title Owner Status Inherent Priority Residual Priority Risk Group

COR0002 Title: Policy change causes disruption    
Due to: Changes to the political and policy operating environment e.g. Devolution White paper  
There is a risk that: regional priorities shift    
Resulting in: disruption to the prospects of achieving our mission    

Clare Monaghan Open Medium/High (15) Medium (10) Policy

COR0003 Title: Strategic Economic Plan    
Due to: Resource levels, external and unanticipated pressures    
There is a risk that: we lose focus on delivering the SEP, and its direction of travel  
Resulting in: an inability to regenerate the economy    

Clare Monaghan Open Medium/High (15) Medium (10) Policy

COR0004 Title: Mayoral Election    
Due to: Failure to deliver the election in accordance with the legislation  
There is a risk that: legal challenge of the result    
Resulting in: lack of public confidence in it and reputational damage    

Ruth Adams Closed Medium/High (15) Medium (10) Legal Compliance 
& Regulation

Appendix A - SYMCA Corporate Risks - October 2022

P
age 147



Prefix Risk Title Owner Status Inherent Priority Residual Priority Risk Group

COR0010 Title: Failure to agree Investment Strategy    
Due to: Failure to agree an Investment Strategy    
There is a risk that: funding is used inefficiently and ineffectively    
Resulting in: an inability to restructure the South Yorkshire economy.  

Gareth Sutton Open Medium (9) Medium (6) Financial

COR0012 Title: Financial Health    
Due to: a lack of quantum, breadth, and flexibility of funding to deliver on all activities    
There is a risk that: there is a unsustainable call on reserves    
Resulting in: structural funding issues being exacerbated by the inflationary environment and disruption
to commercial income streams    

Gareth Sutton Open Medium/High (15) Medium (8) Financial

COR0014 Title: Enhanced Partnership - BSIP    
Due to: insufficient funding through BSIP  
There is a risk that: our aspirations for growing the bus market are undermined  
Resulting in: no meaningful service improvements and continued decline    

Stephen Edwards Open Medium/High (15) Medium (9) Operational Transport

COR0016 Title: Supply Chain Failure    
Due to: a contracted supplier entering into financial distress and/or an insolvency event, the market
being unable to provide services, or the market being unable to deliver services at contracted prices  
There is a risk that: the supply chain fails or is disrupted    
Resulting in: disruption to provision of service, leads to delays, cost pressures, and reputational
damage.    

Gareth Sutton Open Medium (9) Medium (6) Financial

COR0018 Title: Health and Safety    
Due to: A major accident or injury occurs involving SYMCA assets and / or people    
There is a risk that: leads to regulator intervention    
Resulting in: resulting in liability and adverse impact on the workforce, budgets and reputation of the
MCA.    

Steve Davenport Open Medium (10) Medium (5) Legal Compliance & 
Regulation

COR0020 Title: Inadequate Workforce Planning    
Due to: Inadequate planning for future resource needs    
There is a risk that: the approach to resourcing is reactive    
Resulting in: an overstretched and under resourced workforce and reliance on temporary higher cost
appointments    

Gareth Sutton Open Medium (6) Medium (6) Organisational

Low

Prefix Risk Title Owner Status Inherent Priority Residual Priority Risk Group

COR0005 Title: Growth Imperative Hindered    
Due to: The LEP Review changes to the role of the LEP    
There is a risk that: the MCA Growth imperative is hindered    
Resulting in: the policy objective and strategy being undermined.  

Ruth Adams Closed Medium (8) Low (4) Commissioned Operations 
& Delivery

COR0006 Title: Dispersed ownership of inclusion policy objective    
Due to: Dispersed strategic level ownership of the Inclusion policy objective    
There is a risk that: there will be a drift in direction    
Resulting in: delayed and/or ineffectual delivery mechanisms and inefficient use of resources.  

Jim Dillon Open Medium/High (12) Low (4) Organisational

COR0008 Title: Integration    
Due to: failure to effect the integration into a single way of working    
There is a risk that: there is further disruption and uncertainty for staff  
Resulting in: loss of employees and benefits not being realised    

Ruth Adams Closed Medium (9) Low (2) Organisational

COR0011 Title: Enhanced Partnership - DfT Funding    
Due to: Failure to agree an Enhanced Partnership with bus operators and stakeholders  
There is a risk that: DfT funding will be withdrawn    
Resulting in: 

Stephen Edwards Closed Medium/High (15) Low (4) Operational Transport

COR0013 Title: Borrowing leads to financial risk    
Due to: new borrowing vires    
There is a risk that: the MCA is exposed to new financial risk around exposure to interest rates and debt
management and also a new compliance regime    
Resulting in: HM Treasury consents for annual borrowing caps being required    

Gareth Sutton Open Medium (6) Low (4) Financial

Audit Committee - Corporate Risk

P
age 148



Prefix Risk Title Owner Status Inherent Priority Residual Priority Risk Group

COR0019 Title: Post Integration Embedding of Organisational Design    
Due to: staff understanding of roles and responsibilities in the new organisation structure    
There is a risk that: there remains uncertainty about the structure, processes and respective roles of
staff    
Resulting in: a loss of momentum in delivering organisational goals.    

Martin Swales Open Medium (9) Low (4) Organisational

Audit Committee - Corporate Risk

P
age 149



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Risks – October 2022         Appendix B 

 

 

 
Heat Map showing Inherent Score to Residual Score  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
19 October 2022 

 
Internal Audit Plan Progress Report 

 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                   Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa McKenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 

 
Executive Summary 
This report provides an update on the progress of the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan. 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving assurance 
on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance enables the Combined 
Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing 
about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are asked to note the progress of 2022/23 audit 
activity and approve any changes to the Internal Audit Plan.  
  

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Internal Audit Plan Progress Report October 2022 

 

Page 153

Agenda Item 16



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 155

mailto:peter.c.clark@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

••

•

P
age 156



Commercial in confidence

P
age 157



Commercial in confidence

P
age 158



Commercial in confidence

P
age 159



Commercial in confidence

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 160



 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

19 October 2022 
 

Internal Audit Report - Governance 
 

 
Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

               Discussion 
 

Funding Stream:                     Not applicable 
 
Is this a Key Decision?                          No 
 
Has it been included on the                  Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa Mackenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 

Executive Summary: 
This report presents an internal audit report from the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan.  
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving assurance 
on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance enables the MCA to 
pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing about better 
outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire.  
 

Recommendations:   
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are asked to consider the findings and 
recommendations of the internal audit on Governance. 
 
Appendices 
Appendix A – Corporate Governance Final Report 

 

Page 161

Agenda Item 17



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 163

mailto:peter.c.clark@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 164



Commercial in confidence

P
age 165



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 166



Commercial in confidence

P
age 167



Commercial in confidence

P
age 168



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 169



Commercial in confidence

1.

P
age 170



Commercial in confidence

2.

P
age 171



Commercial in confidence

3.

P
age 172



P
age 173



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 174



Commercial in confidence

P
age 175



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 176



P
age 177



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

19 October 2022 
 

Internal Audit Reports - GDPR 
 

 
Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

               Discussion 
 

Funding Stream:                     Not applicable 
 
Is this a Key Decision?                          No 
 
Has it been included on the                  Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 

 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa Mackenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 

Executive Summary: 
This report presents an internal audit report from the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan.  
 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving assurance 
on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance enables the MCA to 
pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing about better 
outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire.  
 

Recommendations:   
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are asked to consider the findings and 
recommendations of the internal audit on GDPR. 
 
Appendix A – GDPR Final Report 

 

Page 179

Agenda Item 18



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 181

mailto:peter.c.clark@uk.gt.com
mailto:lisa.p.mackenzie@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 182



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 183



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 184



Commercial in confidence

P
age 185



Commercial in confidence

P
age 186



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 187



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 188



Commercial in confidence

1.

•

•

P
age 189



Commercial in confidence

2.

P
age 190



P
age 191



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 192



Commercial in confidence

P
age 193



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 194



P
age 195



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

 
19 October 2022 

 
Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report 

 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                   No 
Forward Plan? 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive 
 
Report Author(s): 
Lisa Mackenzie, Internal Audit – Grant Thornton 
 

Executive Summary 
The Audit, Standards and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the 
Authority’s internal audit strategy, and receiving reports as appropriate, from the Internal 
Auditor. This report presents an update on the implementation of the recommendations made 
by Internal Audit. 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving assurance 
on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance enables the Combined 
Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing 
about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
Members are asked to review the progress of the implementation of internal audit 
recommendations. 
 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker October 2022 

 

Page 197

Agenda Item 19



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 199



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

2

5

4 4

3

2

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Implemented Overdue Not Yet Due

Low Medium High

P
age 200



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

3

6
3

4
7

Not yet due Overdue High Medium Low risk

3

1

3

0

2

4

6

Deputy Chief Executive Group Finance Director

Low Medium High

P
age 201



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

4

P
age 202



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

5

P
age 203



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

6

P
age 204



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

7

P
age 205



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

8

P
age 206



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

9

P
age 207



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker Report | Year ending 31 March 2023

Commercial in confidence

The table below describes how we grade our audit recommendations based on risks: 

Appendix 1: 

Our recommendation ratings

10

Rating Description Possible features

Findings that are fundamental to the management 

of risk in the business area, representing a 

weakness in the design or application of activities 

or control that requires the immediate attention of 

management

• Key activity or control not designed or operating effectively

• Potential for fraud identified

• Non-compliance with key procedures/standards

• Non-compliance with regulation

Findings that are important to the management of 

risk in the business area, representing a moderate 

weakness in the design or application of activities 

or control that requires the immediate attention of 

management

• Important activity or control not designed or operating effectively 

• Impact is contained within the department and compensating controls would detect errors

• Possibility for fraud exists

• Control failures identified but not in key controls

• Non-compliance with procedures/standards (but not resulting in key control failure)

Findings that identify non-compliance with 

established procedures, or which identify changes 

that could improve the efficiency and/or 

effectiveness of the activity or control but which are 

not vital to the management of risk in the business 

area. 

• Minor control design or operational weakness 

• Minor non-compliance with procedures/standards

•

•

P
age 208



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Recommendation Tracker October 2020

Commercial in confidence

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 209



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Audit and Standards Committee 

 
19 October 2022 

 
Contract Procedure Rules Breach & Suspected Instances             

of Fraud Report 
 
Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                   Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 
 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Gareth Sutton, Chief Finance Officer/s73 Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Jill Smith 
Jill.Smith@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk 
Mike Thomas 
Mike.thomas@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk  
 
 
Executive Summary 
This report provides details on occasions where the Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) have 
been breached and on any suspected instances of fraud.  
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
The CPRs and Fraud Response Protocol are a key internal control, designed to maximise the 
value of MCA expenditure and mitigate inherent risk to public funds. 
 
Recommendations   
Members are asked to note the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 211

Agenda Item 20

mailto:Jill.Smith@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk
mailto:Mike.thomas@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk


1. Background

1.1 Contract Procedure Rules 

How the MCA procures activity and manages contracts is governed by the Contract 
Procedure Rules (CPRs). The CPRs are a Constitutional document and must be 
adhered to by all officers. As part of the integration of the MCA and PTE, changes 
new Contract Procedure Rules were approved by the MCA in June 2022 and are 
scheduled for an annual review.  The Group Finance Director is responsible for the 
content and application of these rules through Finance, Procurement and 
Contracting teams. This report provides an update on breaches to the CPRs.  

1.2 Fraud Response Protocol 

How the MCA manages the risk of fraud is set out in the Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Policy (Part 6F of the Constitution). The policy is applicable to Members, Chief 
Officers and employees of the Authority and its committees, as well as all 
individuals, organisations, contractors, consultants and partners associated with the 
Authority, including customers and stakeholders. 

The MCA’s Fraud Response Plan can be found at appendix 2 of the Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy. The Plan provides direction and guidance in dealing with 
suspected cases of theft, fraud and corruption. In accordance with the Plan, all 
instances of suspected fraud must be reported to the Head of Internal Audit at the 
earliest opportunity.   

2. Key Issues

2.1 CPR Breaches 

The breach report is designed to provide oversight for the ASRC on where 
breaches are occurring and how the MCA is responding. This process will support 
review of potential systemic internal control weakness and inform learning. No 
instances of procurement breaches have been noted since the last reporting date 
where two issues were identified. Actions associated with those issues have 
previously been discussed and delivered.  

2.2 Suspected Instances of Fraud 

Since the last Committee reporting date, one instance of suspected fraud has been 
escalated to the Head of Internal Audit. As this case is currently under 
investigation, the level of detail, which can be published at this stage needs to be 
restricted so as not to prejudice the outcome of any potential criminal proceedings. 
However, the Committee can be reassured that the matter – involving a third-party 
service provider alleged to have falsified data in order to make claims for payment 
from the MCA – will be investigated thoroughly by the Internal Audit Counter Fraud 
team.  

3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal

Page 212



3.1 Option 1 
 Not applicable. 
  
4. Consultation on Proposal 
  
4.1 N/a 
  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 The report will be presented to ARSC in line with the Committee workplan. 
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 This report provides an update on breaches of the CPRs and any fraud 

investigations.  
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 None 

 
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 None  
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 None 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 None  
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  
11.1 None 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice 

 
12.1 None  

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A None 
   
Background Papers 
SYMCA Constitution - https://southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/getattachment/5460570b-415b-49ee-
a649-21dbf56c3702/Constitution-September-2021-v1-rev-2.pdf?lang=en-GB  
  
  

 

Page 213

https://southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/getattachment/5460570b-415b-49ee-a649-21dbf56c3702/Constitution-September-2021-v1-rev-2.pdf?lang=en-GB
https://southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk/getattachment/5460570b-415b-49ee-a649-21dbf56c3702/Constitution-September-2021-v1-rev-2.pdf?lang=en-GB


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 
 

19 October 2022 
 

Internal Audit Re-procurement 
 
Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

  
Reason why exempt:   
 

Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: 
 

Discussion 
 

Is this a Key Decision?                                   No 
 
Has it been included on the                   Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 
 
 
Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Gareth Sutton, Chief Finance Officer/s73 Officer 
 
Report Author(s): 
Claire James, Head of Corporate Governance 
claire.james@southyorkshire-ca.gov.uk  
 
 
Executive Summary 
This report provides an update on the progress of the procurement exercise underway to 
appoint a new internal audit supplier from 1st April 2023. 
 
What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Internal Audit supports the organisation in helping to achieve its objectives by giving assurance 
on its internal control and governance arrangements. Good governance enables the Combined 
Authority to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective and efficient way, bringing 
about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South Yorkshire. 
 
Recommendations   
Members note the progress update. 
 
Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
N/A  

 
 

Page 215

Agenda Item 21

mailto:claire.james


 
1.  Background  
  
1.1 The MCA Group’s internal audit function is delivered by Grant Thornton under a 

three-year contract with an optional extension for a further year. The MCA agreed 
to trigger the option for the extension into the current financial with the contract now 
expiring in March 2023  

  
1.2 Committee members have previously discussed the process for re-procuring 

internal audit services. This report provides an update on that process. 
  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 Unlike many local authorities the Group’s internal audit service is provided under a 

contract for services by an external agent – Grant Thornton. This approach reflects 
the previous practice of the South Yorkshire Transport Executive and the MCA.  

  
2.2 SYPTE has previously appointed external suppliers whilst the MCA has previously 

opted to use local authority shared services. Neither body retains internal capacity 
for this function. 

  
2.3 In considering how to respond to the end of the current contract officers have 

considered the potential to create a new internal audit team. This option has been 
discounted. 

  
2.4 Creating a new internal audit team is considered inefficient for an authority the size 

of, and with the breadth of activity of, the Group. Currently, the costs of the 
procured internal audit service amount to roughly two full time equivalent officers. 
Whilst officers could be recruited it is highly unlikely that recruitment could be 
undertaken that would find individuals with the breadth of knowledge, experience, 
and skill sets that are available to the MCA on a call-off basis through procured 
provision.  

  
2.5 Committee members have previously received a draft tender document outlining 

the services required by the Group. No changes have been recommended to this 
document and so officers have commenced engagement with the internal 
Procurement team to progress the tender exercise.  

  
2.6 The timetable for this exercise is set out below: 

 

Page 216



 
  

3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal 
  
3.1 Option 1 
 N/A 
  
4. Consultation on Proposal: 
  
4.1 The draft specification was circulated to Committee members for comment during 

September. 
  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 The timetable for activity is set out at 2.1 
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 Budget provision for the contract was agreed as part of the business planning 

exercise. 
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 N/A 
  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 N/A 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 N/A 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 N/A 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  

 

Stage in Open Procurement Process Date Timescales (no of days) 

Issue ITT  09/11/2022 1 

Deadline for clarification questions  TBC 
Usually 10 days before ITT 

close 

Deadline for submission of Tender 12:00pm Tues 13 Dec 35 days ‘live’ 

Evaluation  14 Dec – 24 Jan*  
 

Standstill  25 Jan – 06 Feb  

Mobilisation Feb / March 8 weeks allowed 

Contract start date 1 April 2023  

Page 217



11.1 N/A 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice  

 
12.1 N/A 

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A None 
   
Background Papers 
N/A 
  
  

 

Page 218



Audit, Standards and Risk Committee 

19 October 2022 

Committee Work Plan 

Is the paper exempt from the press 
and public? 

No 

Reason why exempt:   Not applicable 

Purpose of this report: Discussion 

Is this a Key Decision?      No 

Has it been included on the    Not a Key Decision 
Forward Plan? 

Director Approving Submission of the Report: 
Steve Davenport, Principal Solicitor/Monitoring Officer 

Report Author(s): 
Claire James  
Claire.James@SouthYorkshire-CA.gov.uk 

Executive Summary 
This report seeks feedback on the proposed work plan for 2022/23. 

What does this mean for businesses, people and places in South Yorkshire?    
Good governance enables the MCA to pursue its ambitions and objectives in the most effective 
and efficient way, bringing about better outcomes for residents and businesses in South 
Yorkshire.   

Recommendations   
Members consider proposed work plan for 2022/23 and agree any changes or additional items 
to be scheduled. 

Consideration by any other Board, Committee, Assurance or Advisory Panel 
N/A 

Page 219

Agenda Item 22

mailto:Claire.James@SouthYorkshire-CA.gov.uk


1.  Background  
  
1.1 The Audit and Standards Committee work plan for 2022/23, is required to facilitate 

the Committee in meeting its accountabilities. 
  
1.2 The work plan is reviewed at every meeting to ensure it remains on schedule. 
  
2. Key Issues 
  
2.1 Proposed meetings dates 
  
2.2 The proposed work plan is attached at appendix A. This document aims to ensure 

the Audit, Standards and Risk Committee are appropriately sighted on key 
governance issues and activities in a timely manner and ensure that items relevant 
to their statutory accountabilities are appropriately scheduled. 

  
3. Options Considered and Recommended Proposal 
  
3.1 Option 1 
 Members consider work plan for 2022/23 and agree any changes or additional 

items to be scheduled. 
  
4. Consultation on Proposal: 
  
4.1 N/A 
  
5. Timetable and Accountability for Implementing this Decision   
  
5.1 N/A 
  
6. Financial and Procurement Implications and Advice 
  
6.1 N/A 
  
7. Legal Implications and Advice 
  
7.1 N/A 
  
8. Human Resources Implications and Advice 
  
8.1 N/A 
  
9. Equality and Diversity Implications and Advice 
  
9.1 N/A 
  
10. Climate Change Implications and Advice 
  
10.1 N/A 
  
11. Information and Communication Technology Implications and Advice 
  

Page 220



11.1 N/A 
  
12. Communications and Marketing Implications and Advice  

 
12.1 N/A 

 
List of Appendices Included 
 
A Work Plan 
   
Background Papers 
N/A 
  
  

 

Page 221



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

Audit, Standards and Risk Committee Work Plan 2022/23 
 
Date Agenda Item 
October 2022 External Audit Plan Update 

Governance Improvement Plan Update 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report  
Internal Audit Reports – tbc 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
Breach of Controls Report 
Work plan for 2022/23 
Terms of Reference Review 

January 2023 Mid-year Treasury Management Strategy report 
Governance Improvement Plan Update 
Annual Governance Review Process 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report  
Internal Audit Reports - tbc 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
Performance Management 
Work plan for 2022/23 

March 2023 Initial findings of the Annual Governance Review 2023/24 
Governance Improvement Plan Update 
Code of Corporate Governance Review 
Internal Audit Plan/Internal audit strategy 2023/24 
Committee Effectiveness  
Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 
2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report  
Internal Audit Reports – tbc 
Updated Assurance and Accountability Framework 
Health and Safety Update/Report 
Breach of Controls Report 
Work plan for 2022/23 

June 2023 Health and Safety Update/Report 
Strategic Risk Monitoring 
External Auditor’s Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 
Findings of the Annual Governance Review 
Draft Annual Governance Statement 
Internal Audit Strategy/Plan 
2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report  
Internal Audit Reports – tbc 
Breach of Controls Report 

 
With reference to the report at item 13, the Health and Safety update will now be 
considered by the Corporate Assurance Board. 

Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Minutes and Actions of the Previous Meeting held on 14 July 2022
	8 Matters Arising and Action Log
	10 Terms of Reference Review
	Appendix A - ASRC Terms of Reference

	11 Public Sector Audit Appointment Procurement and Fees
	Appendix A - Scale Fees Correspondence
	a PSAA announcement of interim procurement outcome - South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority
	b Consultation on the 2022_23 audit fee scale for opted-in bodies - South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority
	c Proposed 2022_23 scale fees for South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority
	d South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority
	e Proposed 2022_23 scale fees for South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive
	f South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive


	12 External Audit Plan Update
	SYMCA Audit Planning Report
	SYPTE Audit Planning Report

	13 Strengthening Corporate Governance
	14 National Audit Office Report Summary -  Challenging Climate Change Risk
	Appendix A - Risk Classification
	Appendix B - Key Lines of Enquiry

	15 Risk Management Monitoring Report
	Appendix A - Corporate Risks
	Appendix B - Corporate Risks Heat Map

	16 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress Report
	Appendix A - Internal Audit Progress Report October 2022_23

	17 Internal Audit Report -  Governance
	Appendix A - Corporate Goverance Final Report v2

	18 Internal Audit Report - GDPR
	Appendix A - GDPR Final Report

	19 Internal Audit Recommendations Tracker
	Appendix A - Internal Audit Recommendation Tracker October 2022

	20 Contract Procedure Rules Breach and Suspected Instances of Fraud Report
	21 Internal Audit Re-Procurement
	22 Work Plan for 2022/23
	Appendix A - Work Plan 2022 23




